
AUDIT & GOVERNANCE 
TRAINING

10.00 am

FRIDAY
9 OCTOBER 2020

Remote Meeting

MEETING PAPERS





AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
TIME: 10.00 am
DATE: Friday 9 October 2020
VENUE: Remote Meeting

A G E N D A

ITEM TOPIC CONTACT

1.  Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 & Local Code of 
Corporate Governance 2019/20 (Pages 1 - 84)

Theresa Mortimer

2.  Annual Statement Of Accounts (Pages 85 - 116) Nigel Gabb

NOTES

(a) MEMBERSHIP – Councillors Cllr Bernard Fisher, Cllr Andrew Gravells, 
Cllr Colin Hay, Cllr Brian Oosthuysen, Cllr Shaun Parsons, Cllr John Payne, 
Cllr Alan Preest, Cllr Nigel Robbins OBE, Cllr Ray Theodoulou, Cllr Brian Tipper 
and Cllr Will Windsor-Clive

(b) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification 
about whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the 
Monitoring Officer: Rob Ayliffe e-mail: rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk prior to 
the commencement of the meeting. 

mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



9th October 2020

Theresa Mortimer

Head of Audit Risk Assurance (ARA), 

Area Finance Officer Team and Insurance Services

Annual Governance Statement 

(AGS) 2019/2020

P
age 1

A
genda Item

 1



Agenda
� What is Governance?

� What is the purpose of a Governance Framework?

� What is GCC’s Scope of Responsibility?

� What are the seven key principles of good governance?

� What is the Annual Governance Statement (AGS)?

� What is GCC’s Governance Assurance Framework?

� How has the AGS been prepared?

� How does GCC monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of governance 

arrangements?

� How does GCC rate its Risk Maturity Level? 

� COVID-19 Impact on Governance

� What are the key 2019/2020 governance matters identified? 

� Certification

P
age 2



What is Governance?

Governance is about how the Council ensures that it is doing the right things, in the 

right way, for the right people in a timely, inclusive, open, honest and accountable 

manner. 

Good governance leads to effective:

� leadership and management; 

� performance and risk management; 

� stewardship of public money; and

� public engagement and outcomes for our citizens and service users. 

P
age 3



What is the purpose of a Governance 

Framework?

Comprises the:

� Culture;

� Values; and

� systems and processes by which the Council is directed and controlled. 

It enables the Council to:

� monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives; and

� consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate 

services and value for money. 

P
age 4



What is the purpose of a Governance 

Framework?

The system of internal control is a significant part of the framework and is 

designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. It assures that in conducting its 

business, the Council:

� operates in a lawful, open, inclusive and honest manner; 

� makes sure that public money and assets are safeguarded from inappropriate 

use, or from loss and fraud, properly accounted for and used economically, 

efficiently and effectively; 

� has effective arrangements for the management of risk;

� secures continuous improvement in the way that it operates;

� enables human, financial, environmental and other resources to be managed 

efficiently and effectively; 

� properly maintains records and information; and

� ensures its values and ethical standards are met.

P
age 5



What is GCC’s Scope of Responsibility?

GCC acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring effective governance and has 

developed a Local Code of Corporate Governance that defines the principles and 

practices that underpin the governance arrangements operating within the Council. 

The Code is:

� reviewed and updated annually; and

� consistent with the seven core principles of the Chartered Institute of Public 

Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of Local Authority Chief 

Executives (SOLACE) guidance ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local 

Government framework - 2016 Edition’.

The key focus being on sustainability i.e. Economic, Social, Environmental and the 

need to focus on the longer term and the impact actions may have on future 

generations.

P
age 6



A. Behaving with integrity, 

demonstrating strong 

commitment to ethical values, 

and respecting the rule of law

B. Ensuring openness and 

comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement

C. Defining outcomes in terms 

of sustainable economic, social 

and environmental benefits

D. Determining the 

interventions 

necessary to optimise 

the achievement of the 

intended outcomes

E. Developing the 

entity’s capacity, 

including the capability 

of its leadership and 

the individuals within it

F. Managing risks and 

performance through 

robust internal control 

and strong public 

financial management

G. Implementing good practices 

in transparency, reporting, and 

audit to deliver effective 

accountability

What are the seven key Principles of Good 

Governance?

The Council aims to 

achieve good 

standards of 

governance by 

adhering to the seven 

core principles, which 

form the basis of the 

Council’s Local Code 

of Corporate 

Governance. 

P
age 7



The Council

• Approves the Council Strategy.

• Approves the Constitution (including Standing Orders and Financial Regulations).

• Approves key policies and budgetary framework.

Cabinet
• The main decision-making body of the Council. 

• Comprises Leader of the Council and nine Cabinet Members who have responsibility for particular portfolios. 

Audit and Governance 

Committee

• Provides independent assurance to the Council on the adequacy and effectiveness of the governance 

arrangements, risk management framework and internal control environment. 

• Promotes high standards of member conduct.

• Approves the Annual Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement.

Scrutiny Committees
• There are five Scrutiny Committees aligned to the Council’s corporate priorities.

• They hold Cabinet and Officers to account and scrutinise performance.

Chief Executive 

Corporate 

Management Team

• Implements the policy and budgetary framework set by the Council and provides advice to Cabinet and the 

Council on the development of future policy and budgetary issues.

• Oversees the implementation of council policy.

• Influences a corporate culture and fostering a culture of high ethical standards.

What are the key roles of those responsible for developing 

and maintaining the Governance Framework?

P
age 8



What are the key roles of those responsible for developing and 

maintaining the Governance Framework?

Internal Audit

• Provides independent assurance and annual opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 

governance, risk management and control framework.

• Delivers an annual programme of risk based audit activity, including counter fraud and investigation activity. 

• Makes recommendations for improvements in the management of risk.

Managers
• Responsible for developing, maintaining and implementing the Council’s governance, risk and control framework. 

• Contribute to the effective corporate management and governance of the Council.

Chief Financial Officer 

(s151)

• Accountability for developing and maintaining the Council’s governance, risk and control framework.

• Contribute to the effective corporate management and governance of the Council.

Monitoring Officer

• To report on contraventions or likely contraventions of any enactment or rule of law. To report on any 

maladministration or injustice where the Local Government Ombudsman has carried out an investigation. To 

establish and maintain registers of member interests and gifts and hospitality. To advise Members on the 

interpretation of the Code of Conduct for Members and Co-opted Members.

• Overall responsibility for the maintenance and operation of the Confidential Reporting Procedure for 

Employees. (Whistleblowing) and contributes to the effective corporate management and governance of the 

Council. 

External Audit

• Audit / review and report on the Council’s financial statements (including the Annual Governance Statement), 

providing an opinion on the accounts and use of resources, concluding on the arrangements in place for securing 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources (the value for money conclusion).

P
age 9



What is the Annual Governance 

Statement (AGS) ? 

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the Council to:

� prepare and publish an AGS,  to report publicly on the extent to which we comply 

with our own Local Code of Corporate Governance;

� including how we have monitored the effectiveness of our arrangements in year; 

and

� on any planned changes to our governance arrangements in the coming year. 

Any system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level 

rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it 

can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.

The Council’s Governance Assurance Framework, which underpins the 

statements made within AGS, has been in place at the Council for the year ended 

31st March 2020 and up to the date of approval of the AGS and Statement of 

Accounts. 

P
age 10



What is GCC’s Governance Assurance 

Framework? 

� Assurance provides confidence, based on sufficient evidence, that internal 

controls are in place and are operating effectively and that objectives are being 

achieved. 

� An Assurance Framework is a structure within which Members and Senior 

Management identify the principal risks to the Council meeting its key objectives, 

and through which they map out both the key controls to manage them and how 

they have gained sufficient assurance about the effectiveness of those controls

. 

� ‘The three lines of defence assurance model’ is in place which helps 

Members and Senior Management to understand where assurances are being 

obtained from, the level of reliance they place on that assurance and identify 

potential gaps in assurance. 

P
age 11



What is the Three Lines of Defence? 

Assurance can come from many sources within the Council. The Three Lines of 

Defence model is a concept for helping to identify and understand the different 

sources of assurance. 

By defining these sources into three categories i.e. the

First Line functions that own and manage risks;

Second Line functions that oversee risks and ensures compliance; and

Third Line functions that provide independent assurance.

P
age 12



P
age 13



How does GCC monitor and evaluate the 
effectiveness of its governance 
arrangements?

The key sources of assurance that inform the annual review are:

� The development and implementation of a Member / Management 

governance assurance framework (assurance statements) which enables the 

Council to gain assurance that good governance actions and behaviours are 

operating within the Council; 

� The work of Members and Senior Officers of the Council who have 

responsibility for good governance;

� Internal Audit’s independent review of the effectiveness of the Local 

Government Pension Scheme’s governance arrangements, which includes 

the administration of the pension fund; 

P
age 14



� The Chief Internal Auditor’s annual report 2019/2020, which provides the 

independent assurance that key risks (financial and non-financial) are being 

adequately controlled and provides an opinion on the effectiveness of these 

arrangements;

� Any comments made by the Council’s External Auditors and any other review 

agencies and inspectorates; 

� Development of an overarching Council Wide / Service Area Governance 

Assurance Map (based on the individual service area assurance statement 

responses to each key principle; and 

� The annual report on Risk Management Activity 2019/2020 and the Council’s 

Risk Maturity Assessment. 

How does GCC monitor and evaluate the 
effectiveness of its governance 
arrangements?

P
age 15



How does GCC rate it Risk Maturity Level? 

P
age 16



COVID-19 Impact on Governance 

With significant organisational disruption, new emergency responsibilities, increased 

staff absence and also staff working from home, conducting the annual review has 

recognised the challenges from Coronavirus. The AGS assesses governance in 

place during 2019/20 so the majority of the year will be unaffected by Coronavirus. 

The conclusion on whether or not governance is fit for purpose therefore reflects the 

normal operations. However Coronavirus will have impacted on governance during 

March 2020 and beyond. 

The impact on governance will be felt by all organisations and there will be some 

aspects experienced by all, for example changes to decision making arrangements 

and the conduct of meetings. 

P
age 17



COVID-19 Impact on Governance 

Other aspects will reflect changes to the Council’s priorities and programmes. These 

may fall into the following broad categories: 

� Impact on business as usual in the delivery of services; 

� New areas of activity as part of the national response to coronavirus and any 

governance issues arising, e.g. implementation of new policies and processes and 

emergency assistance; and

� The funding and logistical consequences of delivering the local government 

response, e. g. changes to council meetings and decision making arrangements, 

new collaborative arrangements and funding and cash flow challenges.

P
age 18



COVID-19 Impact on Governance 

Assessment of the longer term disruption and consequences arising from the 

coronavirus pandemic, e.g. existing projects and programmes may have been put on 

hold, new priorities and objectives introduced and new risks identified or existing risks 

escalated. 

By the date of final publication the crisis may be in a different place and the Council 

may have conducted or be in the process of reviewing lessons learned from its 

response. However, this area has been included as one of the Council’s significant 

governance issues within the 2019/2020 action plan included within the AGS.

P
age 19



What are the key 2019/20 Governance 
matters identified? 

P
age 20



What are the key 2019/20 Governance 
matters identified? 

P
age 21



What are the key 2019/20 Governance 
matters identified? 

P
age 22



What are the key 2019/20 Governance 
matters identified? 

P
age 23



What are the key 2019/20 Governance 
matters identified? 

P
age 24



What are the key 2019/20 Governance 
matters identified? 

P
age 25



What are the key 2019/20 Governance 
matters identified? 

P
age 26



What are the key 2019/20 Governance 
matters identified? 

P
age 27



What are the key 2019/20 Governance 
matters identified? 

P
age 28



Certification

The annual review assesses the Council’s governance arrangements in place during 

2019/20, so the majority of the year will be unaffected by coronavirus. Therefore to 

the best of our knowledge, the governance arrangements as defined above and 

within the Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance have been operating 

effectively with the exception of those areas identified on pages 21 – 29. 

However coronavirus will have impacted on governance during March 2020 and 

therefore during the current emergency, unprecedented pace of change and degree 

of uncertainty, would naturally carry a lower level of confidence. The Council’s 

response to the coronavirus pandemic and other governance issues identified has 

been summarised within the AGS action plan on pages 27-29.

P
age 29



Certification

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to 

further enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will 

address the need for improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness 

and will monitor their implementation and operation during the year and as part of our 

next annual review.

We will also ensure that the AGS is current at the time of publication and reflects any 

further impacts on governance. Where necessary a second conclusion on the 

adequacy of governance arrangements during this period will be included to make 

clear the impact. 

P
age 30



Questions ?P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Audit and Governance Committee
Date: 30th October 2020 Agenda No:

Title of Report: Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 2019/2020

Purpose of Report: To summarise Gloucestershire County Council’s corporate governance 
arrangements in place during 2019/2020, via the publication of an AGS, 
supported by a revised Local Code of Corporate Governance 
2019/2020, which is in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Government Act 1999, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and 
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) / 
Society of Local Authorities Chief Executives (SOLACE) guidance – 
Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework 2016 
and to provide the Committee with the Council Wide Governance 
Assurance Map 2019/20 and the Council’s Risk Maturity Level 
Assessment 2019/2020.

Recommendations: It is recommended that the Committee:

 reviews and approves the Annual Governance Statement and 
the actions planned by the Council to further enhance good 
governance arrangements; and

 agrees that an update on actions taken to address the 
governance issues identified will be provided to the January 
2021 Committee meeting. 

Officer (s) Contact: Theresa Mortimer: Head of Audit Risk Assurance (ARA), Area Finance 
Office and Insurance Services  
Tel: 01452 328883
theresa.mortimer@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

Paul Blacker, Director of Finance 
Tel: 01452 328999
paul.blacker@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Context There is a requirement under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
to conduct an annual review of the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control and prepare an Annual Governance Statement. 

As part of the Council’s Constitution, it is the responsibility of the Audit 
and Governance Committee to approve this statement.

Page 33

mailto:theresa.mortimer@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:paul.blacker@gloucestershire.gov.uk


To support the above, in April 2016, CIPFA and SOLACE published 
‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework 2016 
and this applies to annual governance statements prepared from the 
2018/2019 financial year. Guidance notes were also published to assist 
Council Leaders and Chief Executives in reviewing and testing their 
governance arrangements against the revised seven principles for good 
governance. 

The key focus of the framework is on sustainability: economic, social 
and environmental and the need to focus on the longer term and the 
impact actions may have on future generations.

In response to the above, we therefore:

 reviewed the existing governance arrangements against 
the revised principles set out in the Framework;

 developed and implemented a refreshed local code of 
corporate governance, based on the principles, including 
an assurance framework for ensuring ongoing 
effectiveness; and

 will report publically, via the Annual Governance 
Statement on compliance with our code on an annual 
basis, how we have monitored the effectiveness of our 
governance arrangements in the year and on planned 
improvement areas.

The Annual Governance Statement is signed by the Leader, Chief 
Executive and the S151 Officer and must accompany the Annual 
Statement of Accounts.

Key Risks Failure to deliver effective governance will impact on the ability of the 
Council to achieve its vision, outcomes and priorities. 

Page 34



1 
  

Annual Governance Statement 
2019 - 2020

 

P
age 35



2 
  

Contents 

Scope of Responsibility ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

What is Governance? ......................................................................................................................................................................................... 4 

What is the purpose of a Governance Framework? ........................................................................................................................................... 4 

What is the Annual Governance Statement? ...................................................................................................................................................... 5 

What is a Governance Assurance Framework? ................................................................................................................................................. 6 

What are the Council’s Governance, Risk and Control Assurance Framework? ................................................................................................ 7 

How has the Annual Governance Statement been prepared?............................................................................................................................ 8 

How does the Council monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of its governance arrangements? ..................................................................... 8 

COVID-19 Impact on Governance .................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

What are the key elements of GCC’s Governance Framework? ...................................................................................................................... 11 

How has the Council addressed the governance improvement actions from 2018/19? ................................................................................... 20 

What are the key 2019/20 Governance matters identified? .............................................................................................................................. 21 

  

P
age 36



3 
  

Scope of Responsibility 
Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper 

standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council 

also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its 

functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 
 

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, 

and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 

GCC acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring that there is effective governance within the Council and as such has developed a Code of 

Corporate Governance that defines the principles and practices that underpin the governance arrangements operating within the Council.  

The Code is reviewed and updated annually and is consistent with the seven core principles of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 

Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Society of Local Authority Chief Executives (SOLACE) guidance ‘Delivering Good Governance in Local 

Government framework - 2016 Edition’, the key focus being on sustainability i.e. economic, social and environmental and the need to focus 

on the longer term and the impact actions may have on future generations. 

A copy of the Code can be accessed on the Council’s website. However, a summary of the seven core principles upon which it is based can 

be found on page 11 of this document.  

This statement explains how the Council has complied with the Code and also meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2015, regulation 6(1) (a) and (b), which requires the Council to prepare and publish an Annual Governance Statement (AGS).      

The responsibility for leading and directing the annual reviews of the effectiveness of the Council’s governance arrangements against the 

Code and providing ongoing oversight and robust challenge, is the Council’s Statutory Officers, comprising, the Chief Executive, Chief 

Financial Officer (S151) and the Monitoring Officer and when completed, the findings are reported to and improvement actions identified are 

monitored by the Audit and Governance Committee. 

  

P
age 37



4 
  

What is Governance? 
Governance is about how the Council ensures that it is doing the right things, in the right way, for the right people in a timely, inclusive, open, 

honest and accountable manner. Good governance leads to effective: 

 leadership and management;  

 performance and risk management;  

 stewardship of public money; and 

 public engagement and outcomes for our citizens and service users.  

What is the purpose of a Governance Framework? 
The governance framework comprises the culture, values, systems and processes by which an organisation is directed and controlled. It 

enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery 

of appropriate services and value for money. The system of internal control is a significant part of the framework and is designed to manage 

risk to a reasonable level. It assures that in conducting its business, the Council: 

 operates in a lawful, open, inclusive and honest manner;  

 makes sure that public money and assets are safeguarded from inappropriate use, or from loss and fraud, properly accounted for and 

used economically, efficiently and effectively;  

 has effective arrangements for the management of risk; 

 secures continuous improvement in the way that it operates; 

 enables human, financial, environmental and other resources to be managed efficiently and effectively;  

 properly maintains records and information; and 

 ensures its values and ethical standards are met. 

  

P
age 38



5 
  

What is the Annual Governance Statement?  
The Council is required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 to prepare and publish an Annual Governance Statement, in order to 

report publicly on the extent to which we comply with our own Local Code of Corporate Governance, including how we have monitored the 

effectiveness of our arrangements in year and on any planned changes to our governance arrangements in the coming year.  

In this document the Council:  

 acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound system of governance;  

 summarises the key elements of the governance framework and the roles of those responsible for the development and maintenance 

of the governance environment;  

 describes how the Council has monitored and evaluated the effectiveness of its governance arrangements in the year, and on any 

planned changes in the coming period;  

 provides details of how the Council has responded to any issue(s) identified in last year’s governance statement; and 

 reports on any key governance matters identified from this review and provides a commitment to addressing them.  

The Annual Governance Statement reports on the governance framework that has been in place at Gloucestershire County Council for the 

year ended 31st March 2020 and up to the date of approval of the statement of accounts. 

It should be noted however, that any system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all 

risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.  

The Council’s Governance Assurance Framework, which underpins the AGS, has been in place at the Council for the year ended 31st 

March 2020 and up to the date of approval of the AGS and Statement of Accounts.  

  

P
age 39



6 
  

What is a Governance Assurance Framework?  
 

Assurance provides confidence, based on sufficient evidence, that internal controls are in place and are operating effectively and that 

objectives are being achieved. An Assurance Framework is a structure within which Members and Senior Management identify the principal 

risks to the Council meeting its key objectives, and through which they map out both the key controls to manage them and how they have 

gained sufficient assurance about the effectiveness of those controls. The assurance framework underpins the statements made within the 

Annual Governance Statement.  

A governance assurance process is in place to provide a framework for the annual assessment of the effectiveness of the governance 

arrangements operating within the Council. This includes Cabinet Member overview and oversight and robust challenge by the Council’s 

Statutory Officers i.e. the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer and Chief Financial Officer.  

In addition, ‘the three lines of defence assurance model’ is in place which helps Members and Senior Management to understand where 

assurances are being obtained from, the level of reliance they place on that assurance and identify potential gaps in assurance.  

The Three Lines of Defence in effective Risk Management and Control 

Assurance can come from many sources within the Council. The Three Lines of Defence is a concept for helping to identify and understand 

the different sources of assurance. By defining these sources into three categories i.e. the First Line (functions that own and manage risks 

e.g. operational management has ownership, responsibility and accountability for directly identifying, assessing and controlling / mitigation 

risks), the Second Line (functions that oversee risks and ensures compliance e.g. HR, Finance, IT and other control functions. This line 

monitors the effectiveness of risk management arrangements put in place by the first line and the Third Line (functions that provide 

independent assurance on the management of risks e.g. Internal Audit). In addition to internal governance arrangements, External Auditors, 

regulators and other bodies reside outside of the Council’s structure, but have an important role in the Council’s overall governance and 

control structure. This framework helps the Council understand how each contributes to the overall level of assurance and how best they can 

be integrated and supported. Please see page 7 below which summarises the Council’s assurance framework, which is based on the three 

lines of defence model.  

P
age 40



7 
  

What are the Council’s Governance, Risk and Control Assurance Framework?  
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

. 

2nd Line of Defence 

Risk Control and 

Compliance 

Functions that oversee risks 

 

1st Line of Defence 

Risk Owners / Managers 

Functions that are 

accountable, own and 

manage risk  

 

3rd Line of Defence 

Independent Risk 

Assurance 

Functions that provide 

independent assurance 

Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Monitoring Officer, Corporate Leadership Team  
(Provides oversight of the 3 lines of defence assurance framework) 

Governing Body / Audit and Governance Committee  
(AGS Approval Committee) 

Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 

Operational Management 

Inspection 

Risk Management 

 

Quality  

 

Responsibility for directly 
assessing, controlling and 

mitigating risk 

 

Design and Implement Risk 
Control Measures 

 

Compliance 

 

Internal Audit 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d

it
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
In

s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

s
 

Management / Supervisory 

Controls 

R
e
v
ie

w
 A

g
e
n

c
ie

s
 

R
e
g

u
la

to
rs

 

Financial Control 

Support 

and 

monitor 

Validate 

1
st
 and  

2
nd

 line 

P
age 41



8 
  

How has the Annual Governance Statement been prepared?  
 

In preparing the Annual Governance Statement the Council has: 

 reviewed the Council’s existing governance arrangements against the revised CIPFA / SOLACE ‘Delivering Good Governance in 

Local Government framework - 2016 Edition’ good practice guidance; 

 updated the Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance to reflect this guidance which includes the revised seven principles of 

good governance and associated required actions and behaviours taken by the Council that demonstrate good governance; and 

 assessed the effectiveness of the Council’s governance arrangements against the revised Local Code of Corporate Governance. 

How does the Council monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of its 

governance arrangements? 
 

The Council annually reviews the effectiveness of its governance arrangements to ensure it supports the delivery of sustainable service 

outcomes and value for money. The key sources of assurance that inform this review are:  

 The development and implementation of a Member / Management governance assurance framework which enables the Council to 

gain assurance that good governance actions and behaviours are operating within the Council;  

 The work of Members and Senior Officers of the Council who have responsibility for good governance; 

 The Chief Internal Auditor’s annual opinion which has, except for those matters identified in relation to Children’s Services and the 

Fire Service, up to the middle of March 2020, provided a satisfactory independent opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s 

control environment comprising, risk management, control and governance. The opinion given is based on internal audit work 

undertaken, and completed, prior to emergency measures being implemented as a result of the pandemic. These measures have 

resulted in a significant level of strain being placed on normal procedures and control arrangements. The level of impact is also 

changing as the situation develops. It is therefore not possible to quantify, at this stage, the additional risk arising from the current 

short term measures or the overall impact on the framework of governance, risk management and control;  

P
age 42



9 
  

 

 Internal Audit’s independent review of the effectiveness of the Local Government Pension Scheme’s governance arrangements, 

which includes the administration of the pension fund;  

 The annual report on Risk Management Activity 2019/2020; 

 The Council’s Risk Maturity Assessment which is Level 4 out of 5: Risk Managed – Established risk management with planned 

extension / development; and 

 Any comments made by the Council’s External Auditors and any other review agencies and inspectorates.   

P
age 43



10 
  

COVID-19 Impact on Governance  
 
With significant organisational disruption, new emergency responsibilities, increased staff absence and also staff working from home, 

conducting the annual review has recognised the challenges from Coronavirus. The AGS assesses governance in place during 2019/20 so 

the majority of the year will be unaffected by Coronavirus. The conclusion on whether or not governance is fit for purpose therefore reflects 

the normal operations. However Coronavirus will have impacted on governance during March 2020 and beyond. The impact on governance 

will be felt by all organisations and there will be some aspects experienced by all, for example changes to decision making arrangements 

and the conduct of meetings. Other aspects will reflect changes to the Council’s priorities and programmes. These may fall into the following 

broad categories:  

 Impact on business as usual in the delivery of services;  

 New areas of activity as part of the national response to coronavirus and any governance issues arising, e.g. implementation of 

new policies and processes and emergency assistance; and 

 The funding and logistical consequences of delivering the local government response, e. g. Changes to council meetings and 

decision making arrangements, new collaborative arrangements and funding and cash flow challenges.  

Assessment of the longer term disruption and consequences arising from the coronavirus pandemic, e.g. existing projects and programmes 

may have been put on hold, new priorities and objectives introduced and new risks identified or existing risks escalated.  

By the date of final publication the crisis may be over and the Council may have conducted or be in the process of reviewing lessons learned 

from its response. However, this area has been included as one of the Council’s significant governance issues within the 2019/2020 action 

plan included within this report. 

  

P
age 44



11 
  

What are the key elements of GCC’s Governance Framework? 
 

The Council aims to achieve good standards of governance by adhering to the seven core principles below, which form the basis of the 

Council’s Code of Corporate Governance:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The following pages provide a summary of actions and 

behaviours taken by the Council in relation to each of 

these seven core principles and associated sub 

principles.  

A. Behaving with integrity, 

demonstrating strong 

commitment to ethical values, 

and respecting the rule of law 

 

B. Ensuring openness and 

comprehensive stakeholder 

engagement 

 

C. Defining outcomes in terms 

of sustainable economic, social 

and environmental benefits 

D. Determining the 

interventions 

necessary to optimise 

the achievement of the 

intended outcomes 

E. Developing the 

entity’s capacity, 

including the capability 

of its leadership and 

the individuals within it 

F. Managing risks and 

performance through 

robust internal control 

and strong public 

financial management 

G. Implementing good practices 

in transparency, reporting, and 

audit to deliver effective 

accountability 

P
age 45



12 
  

Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule 

of law 

Principle A 

 

 
 
Supporting Principles:  

 

 

How we do this:  

  

Behaving with integrity Demonstrating strong commitment to 

ethical values 
Respecting the Rule of Law 

 The Council has an Audit and 

Governance Committee to promote 

high standards of member conduct. 

Elected members must follow a 

Code of Conduct to ensure high 

standards in the way they 

undertake their duties. The 

Monitoring Officer advises 

members on the Code of Conduct. 

 Officer behaviour is governed by 

the Employees’ Code of Conduct. 

The Code has been formulated to 

provide a set of standards of 

conduct expected of employees at 

work. 

 External providers of services 

acting on behalf of the Council are 

also required to comply with the 

Code of Conduct. 

 These Codes are regularly 

reviewed to ensure they are 

operating effectively. 

 Arrangements exist to ensure that 

members and officers are not 

influenced by prejudice, bias or 

conflicts of interest in dealing with 

different stakeholders. These 

include: 

o Registers of disclosable conflicts 

of interests; 

o Declarations of disclosable 

conflicts of interests and 

disclosable other interests at the 

start of meetings; and 

o Registers of gifts and hospitality. 

 A corporate complaints procedure 

exists to receive and respond to 

any complaints received. 

 Actively seek to deter and prevent 

fraud and corruption and ensure 

where irregularity is suspected that 

it is thoroughly investigated. 

 The required leadership and staff 

‘behaviours’ are embedded into 

performance appraisals. 

 The Constitution sets out the 

responsibilities of the Council, the 

Cabinet, Scrutiny and other 

Committees, as well as officers, 

including decision making powers. 

 The Council has a duty to appoint 

three of its staff to specific roles, 

these being: 

 -The Head of Paid Service (Chief 

Executive), who has overall 

accountability for the governance 

arrangements operating within the 

Council.   

 - The Monitoring Officer who has a 

key role in ensuring that decisions 

taken by the Council are within the 

law and the Council complies with 

the provisions of its Constitution. 

- The Chief Financial Officer is the 

principal financial adviser to the 

Council and is responsible for the 

proper administration of the 

Council’s financial affairs and 

internal control environment. 

P
age 46

http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=655&Year=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=655&Year=0
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/constitution/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/complaints-and-feedback/comment-complaint-or-compliment/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/constitution/
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=333
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=117
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1


13 
  

Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 

Principle B 

 

 
Supporting Principles:  

 

 

How we do this:  

 

 

  

Openness 
Engaging comprehensively with 

institutional stakeholders 

Engaging stakeholders effectively, 

including individual citizens and 

service users 

 

 Progress against the Council 

Strategy is monitored on a 

quarterly basis through strategic 

performance / financial / risk 

reports to the Cabinet and Scrutiny 

Committees, which are publicly 

available. 

 Cabinet Member decisions and 

significant officer decisions are also 

reported on the Council’s website. 

 The Council publishes an annual 

report on the activity of the Scrutiny 

function.  

 The Council publishes certain data 

in accordance with the Local 

Government Transparency Code 

which enables more power to be 

placed into citizens’ hands to 

increase democratic accountability 

and make it easier for local people 

to contribute to the local decision 

making process and help shape 

public services.  

 Elected members are 

democratically accountable to their 

local area and this provides a clear 

leadership role in building 

sustainable communities. 

 The Council's planning and 

decision-making processes are 

designed to include consultation 

with stakeholders and the 

submission of views by local 

people. 

 Developed and implemented 

alternative service delivery models 

to allow for resources to be used 

more efficiently and effectively. 

 The long-term vision for the Council is 

set out in the Council Strategy which 

is updated annually and informed by 

public consultation.  

 Call-in is for Cabinet decisions or 

decisions by the Leader or a Cabinet 

Member and a key decision taken by 

Officers under delegated powers. This 

allows an opportunity for further 

consideration of the issue before 

implemented. 

 Formal Public Consultation 

arrangements and public meetings 

held to ascertain stakeholder views 

prior to developing and implementing 

key policy changes. 

 Consult Gloucestershire: The People's 

Panel has been set up which is made 

up of Gloucestershire residents from 

all different backgrounds. Members of 

the panel are asked to give their views 

about Council services and issues 

affecting Gloucestershire. 

 This could be via online and 
postal surveys or local 
events. 

P
age 47

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/corporate-plans-and-strategies/looking-to-the-future-new-council-strategy/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/corporate-plans-and-strategies/looking-to-the-future-new-council-strategy/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/council-performance/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/council-performance/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/council-performance/
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?bcr=1&DM=3
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/transparency/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/consultations/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/consultations/consult-gloucestershire-the-peoples-panel/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/consultations/consult-gloucestershire-the-peoples-panel/


14 
  

Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable, economic, social and environmental benefits 

Principle C 

 

 

Supporting Principles:  

 

 

How we do this:  

  

 

Defining outcomes Sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits 

 The long term vision and Council’s priorities are set out 

in the Council Strategy. 

 A Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy, Capital 

Programme and annual budget process ensure that 

financial resources are directed to the Council’s 

priorities. 

 The Council works with partner organisations where 

there are shared objectives and clear economic benefits 

from joint working.  

 The Council has a co-ordinated and structured approach 

to commissioning services and defining outcomes. 

 Contract management and monitoring arrangements are 

in place to ensure that services provided are delivered to 

a high standard. 

 The Council’s corporate planning, performance and risk 

framework reports progress against business objectives 

and targets. These are reported and monitored by the 

Corporate Management Team, Overview and Scrutiny 

Management Committee and Cabinet Members.   

 

 An Efficiency Programme identifies and implements 

efficiency savings across the organisation in a 

systematic and considered manner. 

 The Council aims to ensure that the purchase or 

commissioning of goods, services or works required to 

deliver services is acquired under Best Value terms. 

 The Council has developed business continuity plans to 

ensure that critical service delivery can be maintained or 

recovered during an emergency. 

 The Council’s decision making process requires 

consideration of the economic, social and environmental 

impacts of policies and plans when taking decisions 

about service provision. In addition a sustainability 

check list is also included to ensure sustainability is also 

fully considered. 

 Programme and project management arrangements 

require consideration of Political, Environmental, 

Societal (i.e. increased demand for a service and 

demographic changes), technological, legislative, 

economic and efficiency issues, risks and opportunities 

and value for money. 

P
age 48

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/budget-and-medium-term-financial-strategy/


15 
  

Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes 

Principle D 

 

 
Supporting Principles:  

 

 

How we do this:  

  

Determining interventions Planning interventions Optimising achievement of intended 

outcomes 

 The Council’s decision making 

process ensures that decision 

makers receive objective and 

robust analysis of a variety of 

options indicating how the intended 

outcomes will be achieved, 

providing information on the risks 

and opportunities associated with 

those options, thus helping to 

inform those decisions. 

 Public consultation is undertaken to 

ensure that feedback from citizens 

and service users are fully 

considered when making decisions 

about service improvements / 

changes.  

 The Gloucestershire Vision 2050 

plan, which stretches three 

decades, strives to help 

Gloucestershire grow - shaping it 

into a vibrant and welcoming place 

to live, work and study. 

 The Council Strategy defines the 

Council’s key priorities and plans, 

following full consultation with the 

communities of Gloucestershire.  

 The Council has developed 

Strategic Commissioning Plans, 

Service Level Agreements, 

Outcome Agreements and Annual 

Business Plans with clearly defined 

outcomes and a balanced set of 

measures and risks to evaluate 

performance. 

 Quarterly performance reports 

analysing trends and latest budget 

position are monitored by Cabinet 

and Scrutiny Committees and 

mitigation strategies are 

implemented to manage current 

and emerging risks. 

 The Council has developed and 

implemented a Budget and Medium 

Term Financial Strategy. 

 The financial plans demonstrate 

how the Council’s financial 

resources will be deployed over the 

next three years to deliver declared 

aims and priorities.  

 The strategy sets out the overall 

shape of the Council’s budget by 

determining the level of resources 

that will be available and how these 

are currently allocated between 

services.  

 The Council ensures the 

achievement of ‘social value’ (i.e. a 

way of thinking about how scarce 

resources are allocated and used 

when awarding a contract) when 

commissioning services and 

service planning. 

P
age 49

http://glos2050.com/


16 
  

Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it 

Principle E 

 

 
Supporting Principles:  

 

 

How we do this:  

 

 

 

  

Developing the Council’s capacity Developing the capability of the Council’s leadership and 

other individuals 

 The Council participates in relevant benchmarking 

exercises and peer reviews to help inform how the 

resources are allocated, so that outcomes can be 

achieved effectively and efficiently. 

 Collaborative working and alternative service delivery 

models are fully considered as part of the option 

appraisal process, when looking to determine how the 

Council’s resources are allocated in order to meet our 

priorities.   

 The Council has currently drafted and organisational 

and workforce strategy.  

 The Council has an Occupational Health Service that 

offers health assessments, health screening, health and 

well-being advice, ill health retirement advice, 

rehabilitation advice and advises managers on health 

related performance or attendance issues and an 

Employee Assistance programme which provides staff 

counselling and advice. 

 Implementation of the Aspiring Leaders Programme 

which enables the development of our future leaders. 

Leadership and Management courses are available to 

support learning and development.  

 

 

 The Council’s Constitution clearly defines the statutory 

and distinctive leadership roles of the Leader of the 

Council and the Chief Executive, whereby the Chief 

Executive leads on implementing strategy and managing 

the delivery of services and other requirements set by 

members. 

 A Member Development Programme approved by 

Group Leaders is in place, which supports continued 

Member development. This includes six key skills 

needed to be an effective councillor, namely local 

leadership, partnership working, communication, political 

understanding, scrutiny and challenge and regulation 

and monitoring skills. 

 The Council’s Performance Development Review is a 

1:1 meeting for all leaders and employees. It is an 

opportunity to reflect on how the individual is performing, 

what is going well and also where the individual may 

need further support or development as part of their role.  

 The above includes leadership skills and behaviours as 

these behaviours are essential for the delivery of our key 

priorities, to continue to support our savings targets, and 

form part of our on-going commitment to personal and 

professional development.  

P
age 50



17 
  

Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management 

Principle F 

 

Supporting Principles:  

 

How we do this:  

 

 

  

Managing Risk 

Managing Performance 

 The Council has a Risk 

Management Policy / 

Strategy which clearly 

defines the roles and 

responsibilities for 

managing risk, 

confirming that risk 

management is an 

integral part of all our 

business activities 

including all aspects of 

business planning, 

option appraisals and 

decision making. 

 Business Continuity 

arrangements are in 

place for critical 

services to ensure they 

can continue to operate 

in an emergency. 

 The Audit and 

Governance Committee 

monitor the adequacy 

of the risk identification, 

monitoring and control 

of strategic and 

operational risk within 

the Council. 

 The Council Strategy 

outlines our priorities 

which are built on five 

clear values i.e. Acting 

with Integrity, Focusing 

on Citizens/Communities 

and People, Proactively 

Challenging, Respecting 

and Valuing each other 

and Being Accountable. 

A business planning 

framework is in operation 

which includes our 

Commissioning Plans 

which set out our 

strategic commissioning 

priorities and annual 

business plans which set 

out the key priorities/ 

tasks / targets / risks for 

the day job.  

 Priorities are monitored 

through our performance 

management and 

programme and project 

management frameworks 

and overseen by, and 

reported to, the Overview 

and Scrutiny 

Management Committee 

and Cabinet Members. 

Robust internal control Strong public financial 

management 

 The Internal Audit (IA) 

service is 100% 

compliant with Public 

Sector Internal Audit 

Standards.  

 Whilst improvement 

areas have arisen during 

the year from IA activity, 

action plans have been 

agreed with management 

to address them.  

 Three lines of defence 

risk assurance model in 

place within the council 

(Page 7 above). 

 Fraud is taken very 

seriously and policies 

and processes are 

established to deal with 

such occurrences: Anti 

Fraud and Corruption 

Policy and Strategy and 

whistleblowing policy. 

Managing Data 

 Data is managed in 

accordance with the law. 

The key information 

management and 

security policies in place 

are: The Data Protection 

Policy, Freedom of 

Information Policy, 

Information Security 

Policy and the overall 

Information Strategy. 

 Information Sharing 

protocols are in place 

when sharing data with 

third parties. 

 Strategy ownership rests 

with Information Board 

members who are 

responsible for agreeing, 

monitoring, promoting 

and reviewing its 

implementation.  

 Monitoring also includes 

reports to Audit and 

Governance Committee, 

internal / external audits 

and Information 

Commissioner reviews as 

appropriate. 

 Robust budget 

management 

arrangements are in 

place including 

monitoring and review by 

the Overview and 

Scrutiny Management 

Committee and Cabinet. 

 External Audit review 

and report on the 

Council’s financial 

statements (including this 

Annual Governance 

Statement), providing an 

opinion on the accounts 

and concluding on the 

arrangements in place 

for securing economy, 

efficiency and 

effectiveness in the use 

of resources (the value 

for money conclusion). 

 The Audit and 

Governance Committee 

monitor the effectiveness 

of the Chief Financial 

Officer’s responsibility for 

ensuring an adequate 

internal / financial control 

environment. 

P
age 51

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s43403/Risk%20Management%20Policy%20and%20Strategy%202018-21.pdf
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s43403/Risk%20Management%20Policy%20and%20Strategy%202018-21.pdf
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s43403/Risk%20Management%20Policy%20and%20Strategy%202018-21.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35167/Anti%20Fraud%20Policy-%20Strategy%20-%202017%20-%202019%20v7-3.pdfhttp:/glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35167/Anti%20Fraud%20Policy-%20Strategy%20-%202017%20-%202019%20v7-3.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35167/Anti%20Fraud%20Policy-%20Strategy%20-%202017%20-%202019%20v7-3.pdfhttp:/glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35167/Anti%20Fraud%20Policy-%20Strategy%20-%202017%20-%202019%20v7-3.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35167/Anti%20Fraud%20Policy-%20Strategy%20-%202017%20-%202019%20v7-3.pdfhttp:/glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s35167/Anti%20Fraud%20Policy-%20Strategy%20-%202017%20-%202019%20v7-3.pdf
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/complaints-and-feedback/whistleblowing/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/strategies-plans-policies/information-management-and-security-policies/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/strategies-plans-policies/information-management-and-security-policies/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/strategies-plans-policies/information-management-and-security-policies/
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=655&MId=8781&Ver=4


18 
  

Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability 

Principle G 

 

 
Supporting Principles:  

 

 

 

How we do this:  

  

Implementing good practices in 

transparency 

Implementing good practices in 

reporting 

Assurance and effective 

accountability 

 Agendas and minutes of Cabinet and 

Committee meetings including Scrutiny 

are publically available on the Council’s 

website. 

 The Council has a Freedom of 

Information Act publication scheme (to 

ensure the members of the public have 

access to all recorded information held 

by the Council.  

 Working towards compliance with the 

Local Government Data Transparency 

Code which sets out the minimum data 

that the Council should be publishing, 

the frequency it should be published and 

how it should be published e.g. 

expenditure exceeding £500, grants to 

voluntary, community and social 

enterprise organisations, senior salaries 

etc. This makes it easier for local people 

to contribute to the local decision making 

processes and help to shape public 

services. 

 The published Annual Statement of 

Accounts is the statutory summary of the 

Council's financial affairs for the financial 

year. The purpose of the Annual 

Statement of Accounts is to give clear 

information on the income and 

expenditure of the Council and to 

demonstrate the Council's stewardship 

of public money for the year. 

 The Council publishes an Annual 

Governance Statement and Local Code 

of Corporate Governance in order to 

report how we have monitored the 

effectiveness of our governance 

arrangements (self assessed against the 

seven key principles set out within our 

Code of Corporate Governance) in year 

and on any planned changes in the 

coming year. 

 The Audit and Governance Committee 

review and approve the Annual 

Statement of Accounts and Annual 

Governance Statement. 

 

 Accountability and decision making 

arrangements are clearly defined within 

the Council’s Constitution. These 

accountabilities include arrangements 

when delivering services with our key 

partners. 

 The Audit and Governance Committee 

provide independent assurance to the 

Council on the adequacy and 

effectiveness of the governance 

arrangements and internal control 

environment operating within the 

Council.  

 Risk based internal auditing provides 

ongoing assurance that the key risks 

material to achieving the Council’s 

objectives are being managed. 

 Peer reviews and benchmarking 

undertaken to ascertain good practice 

and implement improvements as 

identified. 

 

P
age 52

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/freedom-of-information/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/freedom-of-information/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-transparency-code-2015
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-transparency-code-2015
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/


19 
  

What are the key roles of those responsible for developing and maintaining 

the Governance Framework? 

 

 

 

  

 

The Council 
- Approves the Council Strategy. 

- Approves the Constitution (including Standing Orders and Financial Regulations). 

- Approves key policies and budgetary framework. 

 
 

Cabinet - The main decision-making body of the Council.  

- Comprises the Leader of the Council and nine Cabinet Members who have responsibility for particular portfolios.  

 
 

Audit and Governance 

Committee 

- Provides independent assurance to the Council on the adequacy and effectiveness of the governance arrangements, risk management 
framework and internal control environment.  

- Promotes high standards of member conduct. 
- Approves the Annual Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement. 

Scrutiny Committees - There are five Scrutiny Committees aligned to the Council’s corporate priorities. 
-  They hold Cabinet and Officers to account and scrutinise performance. 

 Chief Executive  

Corporate Leadership Team 

- Implements the policy and budgetary framework set by the Council and provides advice to Cabinet and the Council on the development 
of future policy and budgetary issues. 

- Oversees the implementation of council policy. 
- Influences a corporate culture and fostering a culture of high ethical standards and integrity. 

 

 

Internal Audit 

- Provides independent assurance and annual opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s governance, risk management 
and control framework. 

- Delivers an annual programme of risk based audit activity, including counter fraud and investigation activity.  

- Makes recommendations for improvements in the management of risk. 

 

Managers 
- Responsible for developing, maintaining and implementing the Council’s governance, risk and control framework.  

- Contribute to the effective corporate management and governance of the Council. 

 

 

Chief Financial Officer (s151) - Accountability for developing and maintaining the Council’s governance, risk and control framework. 

- Contribute to the effective corporate management and governance of the Council. 

 

Monitoring Officer 

- To report on contraventions or likely contraventions of any enactment or rule of law. To report on any maladministration or injustice 
where the Local Government Ombudsman has carried out an investigation. To establish and maintain registers of member interests and 
gifts and hospitality. To advise Members on the interpretation of the Code of Conduct for Members and Co-opted Members. 

- Overall responsibility for the maintenance and operation of the Confidential Reporting Procedure for Employees. (Whistleblowing) and 
contributes to the effective corporate management and governance of the Council.  

 

External Audit 

- Audit / review and report on the Council’s financial statements (including the Annual Governance Statement), providing an opinion on the 

accounts and use of resources, concluding on the arrangements in place for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of 

resources (the value for money conclusion). 

-   

 

P
age 53



20 
  

How has the Council addressed the governance improvement actions from 

2018/19?  
 

The Annual Governance Statement 2018/19 contained the following key improvement actions. Details of the issues and how they have been 

addressed during the year have been reported to the Audit and Governance Committee at their meeting on 24th January 2020. Please note 

that whilst improvement plans are in place to address these issues, due to their significance in relation to governance and inherent risk, all 

four of these actions have been carried forward into the 2019/2020 Action Plan to enable their ongoing monitoring. 

2018/19 Review 
Reference 

Action Current Status 
 

Chief Financial Officer 

Assurance Statement 

Future Financial Sustainability 
 
 

C/F into the 2019/2020 AGS Action Plan 

Safeguarding Inspection 

 

Ofsted Inspection of Children’s Services C/F into the 2019/2020 AGS Action Plan 

Corporate 

Governance 

Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service 

(GFRS) 

C/F into the 2019/2020 AGS Action Plan 

Directors Assurance 

Statement 

The recruitment and retention of employees 

in hard to fill, critical positions. 

C/F into the 2019/2020 AGS Action Plan 

 

  

P
age 54



21 
  

What are the key 2019/20 Governance matters identified?  
The review of the effectiveness of the Council’s governance framework has identified the following actions that will need to be addressed 

during 2020/21, which includes the carried forward actions from 2018/2019. 
 

Review 

Reference 

Governance matters identified/actions taken 
Target Date Lead Officer 

Financial 

Governance 

Future Financial Sustainability / COVID-19 

The Council identified savings of £10.545m as part of the 2020/2021 budget setting 

process. Delivery of this level of savings will be challenging for the Council. 

A small contingency (in Adults) is available if savings are not fully met in 2020/2021. 

 

Actions in response to the above:  

 To continue to review the financial resilience, strategic risks, the robustness of 

financial planning and the accuracy of outturn forecasts in order to ensure long 

term financial sustainability; 

 Ongoing regular review and reporting of funding, cost pressures and savings, 

with focus on the Adult Single Programme savings and financial pressures 

within Children and Families and additional pressures re Covid-19; and 

 Update future years funding forecasts as more details of the Comprehensive 

Spending Review are announced. 

 

In addition, new cost pressures, lost income and unachievable savings targets as a 

result of the impact of the coronavirus lockdown is being dynamically managed and 

monitored. As the long term implications for the Council become more apparent our 

financial planning will be updated accordingly. 

31st March 

2021 

 

Chief Financial 

Officer 

P
age 55



22 
  

Review 

Reference 

Governance matters identified/actions taken 
Target Date Lead Officer 

Executive 

Director’s 

Assurance 

Statement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Ofsted Inspection of Children’s Services  

GCC Children’s Services continue on an improvement journey following the Ofsted inspection 

in 2017. In February 2020, Ofsted undertook their final monitoring visit and the next time they 

return to Gloucestershire it will be to conduct a full inspection under the inspections of local 

authority children's services (ILACS) framework. During 2019/20 work has continued to 

enhance our assurance and governance arrangements as part of our wider improvement 

programme, including:  

 

 An Access to Resources Panel has been introduced in order to strengthen 

management oversight of access to financial assistance for children and families. It is 

chaired by a member of Senior Leadership Team and comprises of managers from 

across children’s services. Implementation has been supported by detailed written 

guidance and a series of briefings with locality teams.  

 

 A 16 Plus Panel has been introduced to monitor those young people with a pathway 

plan who are either homeless or at risk of becoming homeless to ensure appropriate 

preventative action is taken and/or assistance provided.  

 

 A detailed piece of work has been completed around care placements which may be 

considered (by the Regulator) to constitute unregistered provision to ensure there is a 

clear rationale for the placement, to take action where this needed and the child’s 

needs are being met.  

 

Ongoing Director of 

Children’s 

Services (DCS) 

P
age 56



23 
  

Review 

Reference 

Governance matters identified/actions taken 
Target Date Lead Officer 

 We have developed a comprehensive vulnerable children database to ensure there is a 

clear line of sight across education, early years and social care provision around those 

children and young people causing greatest concern.  

 

 High Cost Placement Panel continues to provide a mechanism for scrutiny of costs for 

children with high cost, complex care packages.  

 

 We are continuing to scrutinise agency spend and ensure that time sheets are subject 

to managerial sign off - this is evidencing high levels of compliance.  

 

 Our Performance Management arrangements have continued to develop in order to 

bring further service elements within Liquid Logic reporting, thereby reducing our 

reliance on locally generated data. This is providing for a more exhaustive and rigorous 

overview of performance. 

 
Children’s Services has continued to experience significant costs pressures during 2019/20 

with a projected overspend at year end of circa £13.5m. This is due in greater part to external 

placements and costs associated with agency staffing in social care.  

 

The High Cost Placements Panel continues to provide a mechanism to ensure senior 

management oversight of individual cases and our Sufficiency Strategy sets our longer term 

vision to ensure good quality care provision is available for children and young people. The 

opening of Trevone House during 2020/21 will be a key element in realising that vision.  

P
age 57



24 
  

Review 

Reference 

Governance matters identified/actions taken 
Target Date Lead Officer 

 

Our ‘grow your own’ workforce strategy will also begin to have greater traction on our agency 

spend as the current cohorts of students, overseas workers and newly qualified staff being 

able to take up substantive posts over the next 12 months.  

 

The Social Work Academy will also play a key role in ensuring we are able to support an 

ongoing cohort of students, Assessed and Supported Year in Employment programme 

(ASYE) and newly qualified practitioners.  

 

Social work practice quality remains a significant issue in terms of reaching an OFSTED 

rating that would be seen as reasonable progress and cease to be a reputational risk. Quality 

audits still demonstrate ‘inadequate’ practice in too many case files. Quarterly trends are 

positive but need to move faster. The Social Work Academy training plus targeted leadership 

interventions are key to tackling this remaining issue. 

 

All Council Ofsted monitoring reports can be viewed here.  

 

 

 

P
age 58

https://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/provider/44/916


25 
  

Review 

Reference 

Governance matters identified/actions taken 
Target Date Lead Officer 

Chief Fire 

Officer’s 

Assurance 

Statement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS)  

GFRS are on an improvement journey and all the work being carried out will move them 

towards being fully compliant in all areas of governance. However the Service acknowledges 

that this will take time. A full and robust internal restructure has been completed to secure 

additional resources which included extensive staff consultation.  Following the release of the 

internal audits last year, an Improvement Board has been established which is made up of 

both GFRS and GCC senior directors, project management staff and the cabinet portfolio 

member, the Local Government Association have also attended and supported this.  Internal 

Audit will also be undertaking follow up reviews to provide the independent assurances on 

progress. As part of the wider integration development plan, the GCC Core Values have been 

rolled out and aligned across the Service.  Staff workshops have been set up to allow staff to 

raise concerns with fortnightly staff briefings also taking place. 

 

Along with the audit findings which are being addressed through the Improvement Board, two 

causes for concern have been identified following the HMICFRS (Her Majesty’s Inspectorate 

of Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services) Inspection Report and these are in relation to 

Culture and Values and Business Fire Safety.  Action and progress is currently underway in 

both of these areas and again, are being regularly reviewed as part of the Improvement 

Board. Finally, the former Chief Fire Officer has been formally charged with fraud and this 

case is now ongoing.   

 

Recommendations implementation will continue to be overseen by the Audit and Governance 

Committee thereby providing the relevant assurances that these are being addressed in a 

timely manner.  

Actions and 

progress are 

monitored by 

the 

Improvement 

Board 

monthly and 

the Audit and 

Governance 

Committee 

biannually 

 

Chief Fire 

Officer 

P
age 59



26 
  

Review 

Reference 

Governance matters identified/actions taken 
Target Date Lead Officer 

Director’s 

Assurance 

Statement 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The recruitment and retention of employees in hard to fill, critical positions  

There is increasing evidence that we are struggling to recruit and retain qualified and 

experience staff in certain critical positions.  There are a number of factors influencing this 

including a lack of those with the right skills and experience, the increasing buoyant job 

market, our salaries are falling behind other councils and the private sector as well as the 

perception of local government.  In addition, the aging profile of our workforce means that 

there is an ongoing loss of key experienced workers. 

 

Actions taken to resolve: 

 Development of a workforce plan that highlights critical, hard to fill roles and areas 

where critical individuals are likely to move on with targeted succession plans; 

 Review of our employment offer and recruitment practice to improve promotion of 

Gloucestershire County Council as a place to work and the County as a place to live; 

 Review of our pay and grading structure and benchmarking of key roles to ensure that 

our offer is competitive including use of market supplements and other payments 

where appropriate; 

 A targeted recruitment and retention programme for children’s social workers; 

 A ‘grow our own’ programme for key roles utilising the apprenticeship levy including 

areas such as future managers, lawyers, project managers, social workers, planning, 

highways and professional support roles; and 

 An apprenticeship programme targeted at schools and college leavers to encourage 

them to work in local government. 

31st March 

2021 

Director of 

Digital and 

People 

Services 

P
age 60



27 
  

Review 

Reference 

Governance matters identified/actions taken 
Target Date Lead Officer 

Corporate 

Governance  

COVID – 19 Impact on Governance: In late March 2020 the Government announced a 

national lockdown and advised that all employees should work from home except those 

engaged in essential services who were unable to work from home. The Council implemented 

home working during w/c 16 March 2020. There were a number of consequences that 

impacted upon the governance of the Council: 

 The Council bi-election which was due to be held on 26th March 2020 was suspended; 

 Council and committee meetings were suspended until further notice; 

 Where necessary, decisions were either taken by officers under the Council’s scheme of 

delegation using urgency provisions where appropriate and having sought the required 

authorisations, or postponed; 

 The Chief Executive met weekly with all Group Leaders to share information and 

discuss issues or concerns arising from members; 

 The Council complied with the relevant Procurement Policy Notices issued by the 

Cabinet Office which ensured that suppliers were paid promptly, direct awards made for 

urgently needed goods and services and where relevant relief given to suppliers who 

would be critical in supporting the recovery; 

 Corporate Leadership Team (CLT) met frequently (remotely and reducing over time to 

2/3 times per week) to share information and direct the Council's response to the 

pandemic; 

 Council Officers contributed to national, regional, county-wide response and resilience 

groups to co-ordinate the response to the pandemic; 

 

Ongoing Chief 

Executive 

P
age 61



28 
  

Review 

Reference 

Governance matters identified/actions taken 
Target Date Lead Officer 

  A major community led response to providing support and assistance to the vulnerable 

and those in need, was developed by the Local Authorities, community and commercial 

organisations and individuals; and 

 Communications channels were opened to keep Councillors and staff informed as the 

pandemic, and the Council's response developed.  

 

The Council has responded by: 

 Setting up an internal emergency response structure, including gold, silver and bronze 

levels with cells to target specific tactical issues, in line with best practice. The 

governance structure can be found here; 

 Putting measures in place to re-establish democratic decision-making and Overview 

and Scrutiny using digital/remote technologies; 

 Establishing and monitoring a COVID-19 organisational risk register; 

 Developing Business Continuity Management plans for all service areas and 

coordinated on an ongoing basis by a Business Continuity Management cell;  

 Continuing to ensure that executive decisions are recorded in line with the 

requirements of the constitution; 

 Ensuring best practice is followed in terms of documenting and recording operational 

decision-making in response to the emergency; 

 Maintaining delivery of the majority of Council Services via home working; 

 

  

P
age 62

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2098625/covid-19-response-structure.pdf


29 
  

Review 

Reference 

Governance matters identified/actions taken 
Target Date Lead Officer 

  

 Supporting and co-ordinating a significant community led response to the Pandemic 

including the administration of a £80k community fund and local delivery of a 

Community Help Hub; and 

 Developing and implementing a Recovery Plan to return (restart suspended services), 

retain (keep and sustain any improved new ways of working), resist (resist the 

temptation to simply return to doing thigs as before) and reimagine (consider new ways 

of delivering services after the pandemic). 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 63



30 
  

Certification 

The annual review assesses the Council’s governance arrangements in place during 2019/20, so the majority of the year will be unaffected 

by coronavirus. Therefore to the best of our knowledge, the governance arrangements as defined above and within the Council’s Local Code 

of Corporate Governance have been operating effectively with the exception of those areas identified on pages 21 – 29.  

However coronavirus will have impacted on governance during March 2020 and therefore during the current emergency, unprecedented 

pace of change and degree of uncertainty, would naturally carry a lower level of confidence. The Council’s response to the coronavirus 

pandemic and other governance issues identified has been summarised within the AGS action plan on pages 27-29. 

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance our governance arrangements. We are 

satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their 

implementation and operation during the year and as part of our next annual review. 

We will also ensure that the AGS is current at the time of publication and reflects any further impacts on governance. Where necessary a 

second conclusion on the adequacy of governance arrangements during this period will be included to make clear the impact.  

Signed: 

 

 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

 

 Mark Hawthorne 

Leader of the Council 

Pete Bungard 

Chief Executive 

 

 

Date:  

 

______________________________ 

 

______________________________ 21 July 2020 21 July 2020 

P
age 64



31 
  

 

 

 

 

I can confirm that the Council’s financial management arrangements conform to the governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on 

the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government 2016. 

 

Signed:  

  Steve Mawson – Executive Director of Corporate Resources – (Chief Financial Officer (S151 Officer))  

 

Date:  6 August 2020 

P
age 65



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

1 

 March 2020 

Code of Corporate 

Corporate 

 
 

Governance 
2019-2020 
 

Page 67



 

 

2 

 

 

Contents 
 

Contents ................................................................................................................................ 2 

Introduction ............................................................................................................................ 3 

What do we mean by Governance? ....................................................................................... 3 

Core Principles ...................................................................................................................... 3 

Appendix A - Actions and behaviours taken by the Council that demonstrate good 

governance. ........................................................................................................................... 4 

Appendix B - Gloucestershire County Council Corporate Governance Framework ............... 8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 68



 

 

3 

 

Introduction 
 

The Council’s Code of Corporate Governance is based upon the CIPFA / SOLACE 

publication entitled “Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework 2016 

Edition.” 

 

What do we mean by Governance? 
 

‘The International Framework: Good Governance in the Public Sector’ defines ‘governance’ 

as comprising the arrangements (including political, economic, social, environmental, 

administrative, legal and other arrangements) put in place to ensure that the intended 

outcomes for stakeholders are defined and achieved. The Framework also states that to 

deliver good governance in the public sector both governing bodies and individuals working 

for them must aim to achieve the Council’s objectives while acting in the public interest at all 

times. 

 

Core Principles 
 

The Council’s Code of Corporate Governance is based on seven core principles:- 

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and 

respecting the rule of law; 
 

B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement; 
 

C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental 

benefits; 
 

D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimize the achievement of the intended 

outcomes; 
 

E. Developing the County Council’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership 

and the individuals within it; 
 

F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public 

financial management; and 
 

G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective 

accountability. 

The Code specifically identifies the actions and behaviours taken by the Council in relation 

to each of these core principles and associated sub principles. The Code, along with its 

supporting infrastructure is set out below at Appendix A and is summarised in diagrammatic 

form in Appendix B. 

The Audit and Governance Committee is currently responsible for approving this Code and 

ensuring it is annually reviewed and updated accordingly. 

Page 69



 

 

4 

 

Appendix A - Actions and behaviours taken by the Council that demonstrate good governance.  
 

 

Principle 
Sub 

Principles 
Council Actions and Behaviours 

(A
) B

e
h

a
v

in
g

 w
it

h
 i
n

te
g

ri
ty

, 
d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
ti

n
g

 s
tr

o
n

g
  

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 e
th

ic
a

l 
v
a

lu
e

s
, 

a
n

d
 r

e
s

p
e
c
ti

n
g

 t
h

e
 

ru
le

 o
f 

la
w

 

B
e
h

a
v

in
g

 w
it

h
 

in
te

g
ri

ty
 

 Ensure that Members and Officers behave with integrity and lead a culture where acting in the public interest is visible and consistently demonstrated thereby protecting 

the reputation of the Council; 

 Ensure that Members take the lead in establishing specific standard operating principles or values for the Council and its staff and that they are communicated and 

understood. These will build on the Seven Principles of Public Life (The Nolan Principles); 

 Lead by example and use the above standard operating principles or values as a framework for decision making and other actions; and 

 Demonstrate, communicate and embed the standard operating principles or values through appropriate policies and processes which will be reviewed on a regular basis 

to ensure they are operating effectively. 

D
e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
ti

n
g

 

s
tr

o
n

g
 

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 

e
th

ic
a

l 
v

a
lu

e
s

  Seek to establish, monitor and maintain the Council’s ethical standards and performance; 

 Underpin personal behaviour with ethical values and ensure they permeate all aspects of the Council’s culture and operation; 

 Develop and maintain robust policies and procedures which place emphasis on agreed ethical values; and 

 Ensure that external providers of services on behalf of the organisation are required to act with integrity and in compliance with ethical standards expected by the 

Council.  

R
e
s

p
e
c

ti
n

g
 

th
e

 R
u

le
 o

f 

L
a
w

 

 Ensure Members and staff demonstrate a strong commitment to the rule of the law as well as adhering to relevant laws and regulations;  

 Create the conditions to ensure that the statutory officers, other key post holders, and Members are able to fulfil their responsibilities in accordance with legislative and 

regulatory provisions; 

 Strive to optimise the use of the full powers available for the benefit of citizens, communities and other stakeholders; 

 Deal with breaches of legal and regulatory provisions effectively; and 

 Ensure corruption and misuse of power is dealt with effectively. 

(B
) E

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 o

p
e

n
n

e
s

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 s

ta
k

e
h

o
ld

e
r 

e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

O
p

e
n

n
e
s

s
 

 

 Ensure an open culture through demonstrating, documenting and communicating the Council’s commitment to openness; 

 Make decisions that are open about actions, plans, resource use, forecasts, outputs and outcomes. The presumption will be for openness. If that is not the case, a 

justification for the reasoning for keeping a decision confidential will be provided;  

 Provide clear reasoning and evidence for decisions in both public records and explanations to stakeholders and will be explicit about the criteria, rationale and 

considerations used. In due course, the Council will ensure that the impact and consequences of those decisions are clear; and 

 Use formal and informal consultation and engagement to determine the most appropriate and effective interventions / courses of action. 

E
n

g
a
g

in
g

 

c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
ly

 

w
it

h
 i

n
s
ti

tu
ti

o
n

a
l 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
  Effectively engage with institutional stakeholders to ensure that the purpose, objectives and intended outcomes for each stakeholder relationship are clear so that 

outcomes are achieved successfully and sustainably; 

 Develop formal and informal partnerships to allow for resources to be used more efficiently and outcomes achieved more effectively; and 

 Ensure that partnerships are based on trust, a shared commitment to change, a culture that promotes and accepts challenge among partners and that the added value of 

partnership working is explicit. 

E
n

g
a
g

in
g

 s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e
rs

 

e
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
ly

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
c

it
iz

e
n

s
 a

n
d

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 

 Establish a clear policy on the type of issues that the Council will meaningfully consult with or involve communities, individual citizens, service users and other 

stakeholders to ensure that service (or other) provision is contributing towards the achievement of intended outcomes; 

 Ensure that communication methods are effective and that Members and Officers are clear about their roles with regard to community engagement; 

 Encourage, collect and evaluate the views and experiences of communities, citizens, service users and organisations of different backgrounds including reference to 

future needs; 

 Implement effective feedback mechanisms in order to demonstrate how their views have been taken into account; 

 Balance feedback from more active stakeholder groups with other stakeholder groups to ensure inclusivity; and 

 Take account of the interests of future generations of tax payers and service users. 

 

P
age 70



 

 

5 

 

Principle 
Sub 

Principles 
Council Actions and Behaviours 

( 
C

) 
D

e
fi

n
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s

 i
n

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 e
c

o
n

o
m

ic
, 

s
o

c
ia

l 
a

n
d

 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 

D
e
fi

n
in

g
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 

 

 Have a clear vision, which is an agreed formal statement of the Council’s purpose and intended outcomes containing appropriate performance indicators, which provides 

the basis for the Council’s overall strategy, planning and other decisions; 

 Specify the intended impact on, or changes for, stakeholders including citizens and service users. It could be immediately or over the course of a year or longer; 

 Deliver defined outcomes on a sustainable basis within the resources that will be available; 

 Identify and manage risks to the achievement of outcomes; and 

 Manage service users’ expectations effectively with regard to determining priorities and making the best use of the resources available.  

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 

e
c

o
n

o
m

ic
, 
s

o
c
ia

l 

a
n

d
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 

b
e
n

e
fi

ts
 

 Consider and balance the combined economic, social and environmental impact of policies, plans and decisions when taking decisions about service provision; 

 Take a longer- term view with regard to decision making, taking account of risk and acting transparently where there are potential conflicts between the Council’s 

intended outcomes and short-term factors such as the political cycle or financial constraints; 

 Determine the wider public interest associated with balancing conflicting interests between achieving the various economic, social and environmental benefits, through 

consultation where possible, in order to ensure appropriate trade-offs; and 

 Ensure fair access to services. 

(D
) D

e
te

rm
in

in
g

 t
h

e
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

s
 n

e
c

e
s
s

a
ry

 t
o

 o
p

ti
m

is
e

 

th
e

 a
c

h
ie

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 i
n

te
n

d
e
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
s

 

D
e
te

rm
in

in
g

 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

s
 

 

 Ensure decision makers receive objective and rigorous analysis of a variety of options indicating how intended outcomes would be achieved and including the risks 

associated with those options. Therefore ensuring best value is achieved however services are provided; and 

 Consider feedback from citizens and service users when making decisions about service improvements or where services are no longer required in order to prioritise 

competing demands within limited resources available including people, skills, land and assets and bearing in mind future impacts. 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s

 

 Establish and implement robust planning and control cycles that cover strategic and operational plans, priorities and targets; 

 Engage with internal and external stakeholders in determining how services and other courses of action should be planned and delivered; 

 Consider and monitor risks facing each partner when working collaboratively including shared risks; 

 Ensure arrangements are flexible and agile so that the mechanisms for delivering outputs can be adapted to changing circumstances; 

 Establish appropriate key performance indicators (KPIs) as part of the planning process in order to identify how the performance of services and projects is to be 

measured; 

 Ensure capacity exists to generate the information required to review service quality regularly; 

 Prepare budgets in accordance with organisational objectives, strategies and the medium term financial plan; and 

 Inform medium and long term resource planning by drawing up realistic estimates of revenue and capital expenditure aimed at developing a sustainable funding strategy. 

O
p

ti
m

is
in

g
 

a
c

h
ie

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

in
te

n
d

e
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
  

 Ensure the medium term financial strategy integrates and balances service priorities, affordability and other resource constraints; 

 Ensure the budgeting process is all-inclusive, taking into account the full cost of operations over the medium and longer term; 

 Ensure the medium term financial strategy sets the context for ongoing decisions on significant delivery issues or responses to changes in the external environment that 

may arise during the budgetary period in order for outcomes to be achieved while optimising resource usage; and 

 Ensure the achievement of ‘social value’ through service planning and commissioning. The Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 states that this is “the additional 

benefit to the community…over and above the direct purchasing of goods, services and outcomes”. 

  

P
age 71



 

 

6 

 

  

Principle 
Sub 

Principles 
Council Actions and Behaviours 

(E
) 

D
e
v

e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 c

a
p

a
c

it
y
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 

c
a

p
a
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
it

s
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 w
it

h
in

 i
t 

D
e
v

e
lo

p
in

g
 

th
e

 

C
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 

c
a

p
a
c
it

y
  Review operations, performance use of assets on a regular basis to ensure their continuing effectiveness; 

 Improve resource use through appropriate application of techniques such as benchmarking and other options in order to determine how the Council’s resources are 

allocated so that outcomes are achieved effectively and efficiently; 

 Recognise the benefits of partnerships and collaborative working where added value can be achieved; and 

 Develop and maintain an effective workforce plan to enhance the strategic allocation of resources. 

D
e
v

e
lo

p
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

a
p

a
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 

C
o

u
n

c
il

’s
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 o

th
e
r 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
  Develop protocols to ensure that elected and appointed leaders negotiate with each other regarding their respective roles early on in the relationship and that a shared 

understanding of roles and objectives is maintained; 

 Publish a statement that specifies the types of decisions that are delegated and those reserved for the collective decision making of the governing body; 

 Ensure the Leader and the Chief Executive have clearly defined and distinctive leadership roles within a structure whereby the Chief Executive leads the Council in 

implementing strategy and managing the delivery of services and other outputs set by Members and each provides a check and a balance for each other’s authority; 

 Develop the capabilities of Members and senior management to achieve effective shared leadership and to enable the organisation to respond successfully to changing 

legal and policy demands as well as economic, political and environmental changes and risks by: 

 ensuring Members and staff have access to appropriate induction tailored to their role and that ongoing training and development matching individual and 

organisational requirements is available and encouraged; 

 ensuring Members and Officers have the appropriate skills, knowledge, resources and support to fulfil their roles and responsibilities and ensuring  that they are able 

to update their knowledge on a continuing basis; and 

 ensuring personal, organisational and system-wide development through shared learning, including lessons learnt from governance weaknesses both internal and 

external. 

 Ensure that there are structures in place to encourage public participation; 

 Take steps to consider the leadership’s own effectiveness and ensure leaders are open to constructive feedback from peer review and inspections; 

 Hold staff to account through regular performance reviews which take account of training or development needs; and 

 Ensure arrangements are in place to maintain the health and wellbeing of the workforce and support individuals in maintaining their own physical and mental wellbeing. 

(F
) 

M
a

n
a
g

in
g

 r
is

k
s

 a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

ro
b

u
s
t 

in
te

rn
a

l 
c

o
n

tr
o

l 
a

n
d

 s
tr

o
n

g
 p

u
b

li
c
 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

M
a

n
a
g

in
g

 

R
is

k
 

 Recognise that risk management is an integral part of all activities and must be considered in all aspects of decision making; 

 Implement robust and integrated risk management arrangements and ensure that they are working effectively; and 

 Ensure that responsibilities for managing individual risks are clearly allocated. 

M
a

n
a
g

in
g

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
  Monitor service delivery effectively including planning, specification, execution and independent post implementation review; 

 Make decisions based on relevant, clear objective analysis and advice pointing out the implications and risks inherent in the Council’s financial, social and environmental 

position and outlook; 

 Ensure an effective scrutiny or oversight function is in place which encourages constructive challenge and debate on policies and objectives before, during and after 

decisions are made thereby enhancing the Council’s performance and that of any organisation for which it is responsible;  

 Provide Members and senior management with regular reports on service delivery plans and on progress towards outcome achievement; and 

 Ensure there is consistency between specification stages (such as budgets) and post implementation reporting (e.g. financial statements). 

R
o

b
u

s
t 

in
te

rn
a

l 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

 Align the risk management strategy and policies on internal control with achieving objectives; 

 Evaluate and monitor the Council’s risk management and internal control arrangements on a regular basis; 

 Ensure effective counter fraud and anti-corruption arrangements are in place; 

 Ensure additional assurance on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the framework of governance, risk management and control is provided by the internal auditor; 

 Ensure an Audit and Governance Committee which is independent of the executive and accountable to the Council: 

 provides a further source of effective assurance regarding arrangements for managing risk and maintaining an effective control environment; and 

 that its recommendations are listened to and acted upon. 

P
age 72



 

 

7 

 

Principle 
Sub 

Principles 
Council Actions and Behaviours 

(F
) 

M
a

n
a
g

in
g

 r
is

k
s

 a
n

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 r

o
b

u
s

t 
in

te
rn

a
l 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 

a
n

d
 s

tr
o

n
g

 p
u

b
li
c

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 

m
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

M
a

n
a
g

in
g

 D
a
ta

 

 Ensure effective arrangements are in place for the safe collection, storage, use and sharing of data, including processes to safeguard personal data; 

 Ensure effective arrangements are in place and operating effectively when sharing data with other bodies; and 

 Review and audit regularly the quality and accuracy of data used in decision making and performance monitoring; 

S
tr

o
n

g
 p

u
b

li
c

 

fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 

m
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 

 Ensure financial management supports both long term achievement of outcomes and short-term financial and operational performance; and 

 Ensure well –developed financial management is integrated at all levels of planning and control, including management of financial risks and controls. 

(G
) I

m
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 g

o
o

d
 p

ra
c

ti
c
e

s
 i

n
 t

ra
n

s
p

a
re

n
c
y

, 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
n

d
 a

u
d

it
 t

o
 d

e
li

v
e

r 
e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 

a
c

c
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 

g
o

o
d

 p
ra

c
ti

c
e

 

in
 

tr
a
n

s
p

a
re

n
c
y
 

 Write and communicate reports for the public and other stakeholders in a fair, balanced and understandable style appropriate to the intended audience ensuring that they 

are easy to access and interrogate; and 

 Strike a balance between providing the right amount of information to satisfy transparency demands and enhance public scrutiny while not being too onerous to provide 

and for users to understand. 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ti
n

g
 g

o
o

d
 

p
ra

c
ti

c
e
s

 i
n

 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 

 Report at least annually on performance, value for money and the stewardship of its resources to stakeholders in a timely and understandable way; 

 Ensure Members and senior management own the results; 

 Ensure robust arrangements for assessing the extent to which the principles contained in this Framework have been applied and publish the results on this assessment 

including an action plan for improvement and evidence to demonstrate good governance (Annual Governance Statement); 

 Ensure that the Framework is applied to jointly managed or shared service organisations as appropriate; and 

 Ensure the performance information that accompanies the financial statements is prepared on a consistent and timely basis and the statements allow for comparison 

with other similar organisations. 

A
s
s

u
ra

n
c
e

 

a
n

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 

a
c

c
o

u
n

ta
b

il
it

y
  Ensure that recommendations for corrective action made by external audit are acted upon; 

 Ensure an effective internal audit service with direct access to Members is in place which provides assurance with regard to governance arrangements and that 

recommendations are acted upon; 

 Welcome peer challenge, reviews and inspections from regulatory bodies and implement recommendations; 

 Gain assurance on risks associated with delivering services through third parties and evidence this in the annual governance statement; and 

 Ensure that when working in partnership, arrangements for accountability are clear and that the need for wider public accountability has been recognised and met. 

 

  

P
age 73



 

 

8 

 

Appendix B - Gloucestershire County Council’s Corporate Governance Framework 
3 

 

‘The International Framework: Good Governance in the Public Sector’ defines ‘governance’ as comprising the arrangements put in place to ensure that the intended outcomes for stakeholders are defined and 

achieved. The framework also states that to deliver good governance in the public sector both governing bodies and individuals working for them must try to achieve the Council’s objectives while acting in the 

public interest at all times. 

C
o

re
 

P
ri

n
c

ip
le

s
 

  
(A) Behaving with 

integrity, 
demonstrating strong 
commitment to ethical 
values, and respecting 
the rule of law 

(B) Ensuring openness 
and comprehensive 
stakeholder 
engagement 

(C) Defining outcomes in 
terms of sustainable 
economic, social, and 
environmental benefits 

(D) Determining the 
interventions 
necessary to optimise 
the achievement of the 
intended outcomes 

(E) Developing the Council’s 
capacity, including the 
capability of its 
leadership and the 
individuals within it 

(F) Managing risks and 
performance through 
robust internal control 
and strong public 
financial management 
 

(G) Implementing good 
practices in 
transparency, 
reporting, and audit to 
deliver effective 
accountability 

E
v
id

e
n

c
e
 o

f 
G

o
o

d
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 

The Constitution Council Strategy Cabinet Reports Leadership: Gloucestershire-

Working together for you 

The Constitution The Constitution Audit and Governance 

Committee 

Schemes of Delegation / 

Decision making protocols 

Decision Making Protocols  Council Strategy Budget Consultation Member Development 

Framework 

Audit and Governance 

Committee 

Scrutiny Committees 

Audit and Governance 

Committee  

County Council website 

records all council meetings 

and key decisions 

Scrutiny Framework Stakeholder Engagement Member Induction Programme Scrutiny Framework Decision Making Protocols 

Scrutiny Framework Scrutiny Annual Report Gloucestershire Vision 2050 

Project 

Option Appraisals Workforce and Organisational 

Development Strategy 

Pension Committee External audit of accounts 

and value for money opinion 

Contract Standing Orders / 

Financial Regulations 

Public Meetings  

 

Commissioning Hubs / 

Business Plans 

Council Strategy Leadership Performance 

Management and Aspiring 

Leaders Programme 

Financial Regulations / 

Accounting Instructions 

Annual Statement of 

Accounts  

Statutory Officers Roles 

Chief Executive, Chief 

Financial Officer/Monitoring 

Officer / Legal Services 

Communications Strategy 

 

Option Appraisals Strategic performance, 

financial and risk reporting 

framework 

Staff Performance 

Development Review 

External audit of accounts 

and value for money opinion 

/ Statement of Accounts / 

Medium Term Financial 

Strategy 

Annual Governance 

Statement / Assurance 

Framework 

Members and Officers 

Codes of Conduct  

Consult Gloucestershire 

People’s Panel 

 

Annual Business Plans Medium Term Financial 

Strategy 

Peer Reviews / External 

Inspection 

Risk Management Policy / 

Strategy / Toolkit 

Chief Internal Auditors Annual 

Opinion / Report 

Members / Officers Register 

of Interests / Register of  

Gifts and Hospitality 

Consult Gloucestershire – 

Consultation Portal 

 

Service Level / Outcome 

Agreements 

Commissioning Hubs / 

Business Plans 

Benchmarking Information Governance / 

ICT Cyber Essentials Plus 

GDPR guidance/workshops 

Internal Audit Service 

Protocol for Member Officer 

Relations 

Understanding 

Gloucestershire – A Joint 

Strategic Needs Assessment 

Risk Management Policy / 

Strategy 

Risk Management Policy / 

Strategy 

Internally led reviews / 

independent challenge 

Strategic Risk Register / 

Operational Risk Registers 

Strategic performance, 

financial and risk reporting 

framework 

Anti-fraud and Corruption 

Policy and Strategy 

Strategic performance, 

financial and risk reporting 

framework 

Social Value Considerations Annual Business Plans Alternative Service Delivery 

Models 

Risk Based Internal Auditing 

Service / planning 

Open Data and Transparency 

Code 

Anti-Bribery and Anti Money 

Laundering Policies 

Open Data and 

Transparency Code 

Strategic performance, 

financial and risk reporting 

framework 

Alternative Service Delivery 

Models 

Shared Services Programme Chief Internal Auditors 

Annual Opinion / Report 

Website 

Whistleblowing Policy / 
Speak up if its not right 

Customer Complaints Strategic Environmental 

Assessment (SEA) / 

Sustainability Appraisal (SA) 

 

Decision Making Protocols Continuing Professional 

Development Programmes 

Strategic performance, 

financial and risk reporting 

framework 

FOI Annual Report 

Risk Management Policy / 

Strategy 

FOI Publication Scheme Gloucestershire’s new 

Minerals Local Plan 2018-

2032 

 

Travel Smarter 

Gloucestershire Vision 2050 Safety, Health and Wellbeing Anti-fraud and Corruption 

Policy and Strategy / Anti-

Bribery and Anti Money 

Laundering Policies 

Complaints and Compliments 

Annual Report 

Children's Social Care 

Services - Annual Report 

Adult Social Care - Annual 

Report 

Procurement Strategy / 

Guidance 

Annual Statement of 

Accounts and Annual 

Governance Statement 

published 

The Growth Hub   Employee Staff Survey 

 

Employee Voice Groups 

 

Employee Engagement 

Strategy 2018-2021 

Emergency / Business 

Continuity Management 

Unacceptable Customer 

Behaviour Policy 

 

 

P
age 74

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/constitution/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/corporate-plans-and-strategies/looking-to-the-future-new-council-strategy/
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=117
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/joint-ventures/leadership-gloucestershire-working-together-for-you/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/joint-ventures/leadership-gloucestershire-working-together-for-you/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/constitution/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/constitution/
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=655&Year=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=655&Year=0
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/constitution/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/constitution/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/constitution/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/corporate-plans-and-strategies/looking-to-the-future-new-council-strategy/
https://gloucestershire-consult.objective.co.uk/portal/council/budget20-21/budget20-21
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=655&Year=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=655&Year=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=655&Year=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=655&Year=0
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1
http://glos2050.com/
http://glos2050.com/
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=270
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s55009/Gloucestershire%20County%20Council%20-%20External%20Audit%20Findings%20Report%202018.19.pdf
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s55009/Gloucestershire%20County%20Council%20-%20External%20Audit%20Findings%20Report%202018.19.pdf
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/constitution/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/constitution/
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/2083042/council-strategy-2019.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s49028/Constitution.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s49028/Constitution.pdf
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/constitution/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/constitution/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/constitution/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/constitution/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/council-performance/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/council-performance/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/council-performance/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/budget-and-medium-term-financial-strategy/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/budget-and-medium-term-financial-strategy/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/constitution/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/constitution/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/consultations/consult-gloucestershire-the-peoples-panel/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/consultations/consult-gloucestershire-the-peoples-panel/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/budget-and-medium-term-financial-strategy/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/budget-and-medium-term-financial-strategy/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/audits-inspections-and-assessments/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/audits-inspections-and-assessments/
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s43403/Risk%20Management%20Policy%20and%20Strategy%202018-21.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s43403/Risk%20Management%20Policy%20and%20Strategy%202018-21.pdf
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s54953/Annual%20report%20on%20Internal%20Audit%20Activity%202018-19%20v1.3.pdf
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s54953/Annual%20report%20on%20Internal%20Audit%20Activity%202018-19%20v1.3.pdf
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/constitution/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/constitution/
https://gloucestershire-consult.objective.co.uk/portal/
https://gloucestershire-consult.objective.co.uk/portal/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/constitution/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/constitution/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/inform/understanding-gloucestershire-a-joint-strategic-needs-assessment-jsna/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/inform/understanding-gloucestershire-a-joint-strategic-needs-assessment-jsna/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/inform/understanding-gloucestershire-a-joint-strategic-needs-assessment-jsna/
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s43403/Risk%20Management%20Policy%20and%20Strategy%202018-21.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s43403/Risk%20Management%20Policy%20and%20Strategy%202018-21.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s43403/Risk%20Management%20Policy%20and%20Strategy%202018-21.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s43403/Risk%20Management%20Policy%20and%20Strategy%202018-21.pdf
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/council-performance/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/council-performance/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/council-performance/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/council-performance/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/council-performance/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/transparency/fraud/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/transparency/fraud/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/council-performance/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/council-performance/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/council-performance/
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s51872/Internal%20Audit%20Plan%20report%202019_20%20v1.3.pdf
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s51872/Internal%20Audit%20Plan%20report%202019_20%20v1.3.pdf
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/transparency/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/transparency/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/transparency/fraud/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/transparency/fraud/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/transparency/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/transparency/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/council-performance/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/council-performance/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/council-performance/
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s54953/Annual%20report%20on%20Internal%20Audit%20Activity%202018-19%20v1.3.pdf
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s54953/Annual%20report%20on%20Internal%20Audit%20Activity%202018-19%20v1.3.pdf
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/complaints-and-feedback/whistleblowing/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/complaints-and-feedback/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/planning-policy/strategic-environmental-assessment-sea-sustainability-appraisal-sa/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/planning-policy/strategic-environmental-assessment-sea-sustainability-appraisal-sa/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/planning-policy/strategic-environmental-assessment-sea-sustainability-appraisal-sa/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/council-performance/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/council-performance/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/council-performance/
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s43403/Risk%20Management%20Policy%20and%20Strategy%202018-21.pdf
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/documents/s43403/Risk%20Management%20Policy%20and%20Strategy%202018-21.pdf
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/complaints-and-feedback/complaints-about-data-protection-and-freedom-of-information-requests/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/planning-policy/minerals-local-plan-for-gloucestershire/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/planning-policy/minerals-local-plan-for-gloucestershire/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/planning-policy/minerals-local-plan-for-gloucestershire/
http://glos2050.com/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/transparency/fraud/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/transparency/fraud/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/transparency/fraud/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/transparency/fraud/
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=655&MID=8782#AI21024
http://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=655&MID=8782#AI21024
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/complaints-and-feedback/complaints-about-childrens-young-peoples-services/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/complaints-and-feedback/complaints-about-childrens-young-peoples-services/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/health-and-social-care/adults-and-older-people/social-care-policies-and-procedures/complaints-compliments-and-comments-about-adult-social-care/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/health-and-social-care/adults-and-older-people/social-care-policies-and-procedures/complaints-compliments-and-comments-about-adult-social-care/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/transparency/procurement-information/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/transparency/procurement-information/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/performance-and-spending/statement-of-accounts/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/business-property-and-economy/support-and-advice/the-growth-hub/
http://glosprepared.co.uk/be-prepared/preparing-your-business/
http://glosprepared.co.uk/be-prepared/preparing-your-business/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/18823/unacceptable-customer-behaviour-policy.pdf
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/media/18823/unacceptable-customer-behaviour-policy.pdf


 

 

9 

 

 

Code of Corporate 
Governance 
2019-2020 
 
March 2020 

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Risk Maturity 
Level 
 

Level 1 

Developing 

(Risk Naïve) 

Level 2 

Progressing 

(Risk Aware) 

Level 3 

Operational 
(Risk Defined) 

Level 4 

Embedded & Engaged 
(Risk Managed) 

Level 5 

Dynamic & Empowering 
(Risk Enabled) 

No formal approach to risk 
management.  

 

Consulting and planning to 
implement risk 
management. 

Early Stages of 
implementation. 

 

Established risk 
management with planned 

extension/development. 

Fully established and 
effective risk culture at all 

levels. 

 

P
age 77



T
his page is intentionally left blank



GLOUCESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2019/20 – Assurance Map 

1 
 

Corporate Resources Directorate Assurance Statements – Summary 
 

Leader of the Council Mark Hawthorne 

Chief Executive Peter Bungard 

Lead Cabinet Member Cllr Lynden Stowe (Finance and Change) 

Executive Director  Steve Mawson 

Actions to address non or partial compliance are monitored by Executive Director 

 

Seven Core Governance Principles 

 

A
s
s

is
ta

n
t 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

- 

A
s
s

e
t 

M
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 

P
ro

p
e

rt
y
 

 A
s
s

is
ta

n
t 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 

A
s
s

is
ta

n
t 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
n

in
g

, 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 &
 C

h
a

n
g

e
 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

D
ig

it
a

l 
a

n
d

 

P
e

o
p

le
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

 

D
ir

e
c

to
r 

o
f 

F
in

a
n

c
e
 

H
e
a

d
 o

f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

 

 

 18/19 19/20 18/19 19/20 18/19 19/20 18/19 19/20 18/19 19/20 18/19 19/20 18/19 19/20 

a. Officers within my service area behave with integrity and 
demonstrate strong commitment to ethical values and to 
respecting the rule of law. 

 

G G G G G A G G G G G G G G 

b. My service area operates in a way that ensures openness and 
comprehensive stakeholder engagement. 

 
G G G G G G G G G G G G G G 

c. My service area defines outcomes in terms of sustainable 
economic, social and environmental benefits. 

 
G G G G G G G G G G G G G G 

d. My service area determines the interventions necessary to 
optimise the achievement of intended outcomes. 

 
G G G G G A G G A A G G G G 

e. My service area continually develops its capacity including the 
capability of its leadership and the individuals within it. 

 
A G G G G G G G G G G G G G 

f. My service area manages risk and performance through robust 
internal control, strong public financial management, and 
managing data appropriately. 

 

G G G G A G G G A A G G G G 

g. My service area has implemented good practice in 
transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective 
accountability. 

 

G G A G G G G G G G G G G G 

  

Key  

Fully compliant  

Partially compliant  

Not compliant  

P
age 79



GLOUCESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2019/20 – Assurance Map 

2 
 

Economy, Environment and Infrastructure Directorate Assurance Statements - Summary 

Leader of the Council Mark Hawthorne 

Chief Executive Peter Bungard 

Lead Cabinet Members Cllr Nigel Moor (Environment and Planning) 

 Cllr Patrick Molyneux (Economy, Education and Skills) 

 Cllr Vernon Smith (Highways and Flood) 

 Cllr Dave Norman (Public Protection, Parking and Libraries) 

Executive Director Colin Chick 

Actions to address non or partial compliance are monitored by Executive Director 
 

Seven Core Governance Principles 

 

W
a

s
te

 M
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
 

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 S
k

il
ls

  

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
  

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 

In
fr

a
s

tr
u

c
tu

re
  

H
ig

h
w

a
y

s
  

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s

  

 

 18/19 19/20 18/19 19/20 18/19 19/20 18/19 19/20 18/19 19/20 18/19 19/20 

a. Officers within my service area behave with integrity and 
demonstrate strong commitment to ethical values and to 
respecting the rule of law. 

 

G G G G G G G G G G G G 

b. My service area operates in a way that ensures openness and 
comprehensive stakeholder engagement. 

 
G G G G G G G G G G G G 

c. My service area defines outcomes in terms of sustainable 
economic, social and environmental benefits. 

 
G G G A G G G G G G G G 

d. My service area determines the interventions necessary to 
optimise the achievement of intended outcomes. 

 
A G G A G G G G G G G G 

e. My service area continually develops its capacity including the 
capability of its leadership and the individuals within it. 

 
G G G G G G G G G G A G 

f. My service area manages risk and performance through robust 
internal control, strong public financial management, and 
managing data appropriately. 

 

G G G A G G G G G G G G 

g. My service area has implemented good practice in 
transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective 
accountability. 

A G G G G G G G G G G G 

Key  

Fully compliant  

Partially compliant  

Not compliant  

P
age 80



GLOUCESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2019/20 – Assurance Map 

3 
 

Community Safety Assurance Statements – Summary 
 

Leader of the Council Mark Hawthorne 

Chief Executive Peter Bungard 

Lead Cabinet Member Cllr Dave Norman (Public Protection, Parking and Libraries)  

Chief Fire Officer Wayne Bowcock 

Actions to address non or partial compliance are monitored by Chief Fire Officer 
 

Seven Core Governance Principles 

 

G
lo

u
c
e

s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 F
ir

e
 &

 

R
e
s

c
u

e
  

 T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
  

C
o

ro
n

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s

  

  18/19 19/20 18/19 19/20 18/19 19/20 

a. Officers within my service area behave with integrity and 
demonstrate strong commitment to ethical values and to 
respecting the rule of law. 

 

P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 b

e
lo

w
 *

* 

A G G A G 

b. My service area operates in a way that ensures openness and 
comprehensive stakeholder engagement. 

 
G G G G G 

c. My service area defines outcomes in terms of sustainable 
economic, social and environmental benefits. 

 
A G G G G 

d. My service area determines the interventions necessary to 
optimise the achievement of intended outcomes. 

 
A A G G G 

e. My service area continually develops its capacity including the 
capability of its leadership and the individuals within it. 

 
A G G G A 

f. My service area manages risk and performance through robust 
internal control, strong public financial management, and 
managing data appropriately. 

 

A A A G G 

g. My service area has implemented good practice in 
transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective 
accountability. 

 

G G G G G 

 

** During 2018/19 there was a lack of compliance against established GCC policy, procedure, accounting instructions and contract standing orders in some areas. These compliance issues are 
being addressed through process changes and/or staff development supported by strengthening of internal controls. The effectiveness of these changes will be monitored through returning Internal 
Audit activity and Audit and Governance assurance arrangements. 

Key  

Fully compliant  

Partially compliant  

Not compliant  

P
age 81



GLOUCESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2019/20 – Assurance Map 

4 
 

Adult Services Directorate Assurance Statements – Summary 

Leader of the Council Mark Hawthorne 

Chief Executive Peter Bungard 

Lead Cabinet Member Cllr Tim Harman (Public Health and Communities) 

 Cllr Carole Allaway-Martin (Adult Social Care Commissioning) 

 Cllr Kathy Williams (Adult Social Care Delivery) 

Executive Director Margaret Willcox 

Actions to address non or partial compliance are monitored by Executive Director 
 

Seven Core Governance Principles 

 

A
d

u
lt

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
  
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

  

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
  

In
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
  

P
u

b
li
c

 H
e
a

lt
h

 

 

 18/19 19/20 18/19 19/20 18/19 19/20 18/19 19/20 18/19 19/20 

a. Officers within my service area behave with integrity and 
demonstrate strong commitment to ethical values and to 
respecting the rule of law. 

 

G G G G A A G G G G 

b. My service area operates in a way that ensures openness and 
comprehensive stakeholder engagement. 

 
G G G G A A G G G G 

c. My service area defines outcomes in terms of sustainable 
economic, social and environmental benefits. 

 
G G G G A G G G G G 

d. My service area determines the interventions necessary to 
optimise the achievement of intended outcomes. 

 
G G A G G G G G G G 

e. My service area continually develops its capacity including the 
capability of its leadership and the individuals within it. 

 
A A G A A G G G G G 

f. My service area manages risk and performance through robust 
internal control, strong public financial management, and 
managing data appropriately. 

 

A A G A G G G G G G 

g. My service area has implemented good practice in 
transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective 
accountability. 

G G G G G G G G G G 

Key  

Fully compliant  

Partially compliant  

Not compliant  

P
age 82



GLOUCESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2019/20 – Assurance Map 

5 
 

Children Services Directorate Assurance Statements – Summary 
 

Leader of the Council Mark Hawthorne 

Chief Executive Peter Bungard 

Lead Cabinet Member Cllr Richard Boyles (Children’s Safeguarding and Early 
Years) 

 Cllr Patrick Molyneux (Economy, Education and Skills) 

Executive Director Chris Spencer 

Actions to address non or partial compliance are monitored by Executive Director 
 

Seven Core Governance Principles 

 

C
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 S

o
c
ia

l 

C
a
re

 

  

 

 18/19 19/20 

a. Officers within my service area behave with integrity and 
demonstrate strong commitment to ethical values and to 
respecting the rule of law. 
 

G A 

b. My service area operates in a way that ensures openness and 
comprehensive stakeholder engagement. 
 

G A 

c. My service area defines outcomes in terms of sustainable 
economic, social and environmental benefits. 
 

G G 

d. My service area determines the interventions necessary to 
optimise the achievement of intended outcomes. 
 

G G 

e. My service area continually develops its capacity including the 
capability of its leadership and the individuals within it. 
 

G G 

f. My service area manages risk and performance through robust 
internal control, strong public financial management, and 
managing data appropriately. 
 

G G 

g. My service area has implemented good practice in 
transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective 
accountability. 
 

G G 

 

Key  

Fully compliant  

Partially compliant  

Not compliant  

P
age 83



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Statement of Accounts 

Briefing Session to cover: 

• Statutory Framework 

• Role of Members of the Audit & Governance 
Committee 

• External Audit Process / Findings 

• Key Statements, and what they mean 

• The future 

• Questions 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 2



Statutory Framework 

 
• Statutory Duty  - Annual Accounts 

• Prescribed Format  (CIPFA – CODE) 

• International Financial Reporting Standards 

 

 

 

OUTTURN                           ACCOUNTS 

 

???? 

P
age 86



Statutory Framework cont. 

• The amended regulations for 2020 require that the draft accounts for 

the financial year 1st  April 2019 to 31st March 2020 are approved by 

the Council’s Section 151 Officer before 31st August 2020,(Moved 

from 31st May 2020) and audited accounts be approved by an 

appropriate committee of the Council by 30th November 2020 (Moved 

from 31st July 2020). 

• These amendments have been introduced as a temporary measure to 

reduce the burden on Local Authorities during the Covid-19 Pandemic.  

• The 2019-20 draft unaudited accounts were approved by Steve 

Mawson (S151 Officer) 31st July 2020 and final audited Statements 

will be presented to the Audit & Governance Committee for approval  

30th October 2020. 

 

 

P
age 87



• Draft Statement of Accounts need to be signed by the Executive 

Director of Corporate Resources by 31st August 2020 confirming that 

the accounts : 

reflect authority’s financial position 

give a true and fair view of income & expenditure during period of accounts 

and financial position as at end of period  

• There is a 30 working day public inspection period, which normally 

must include the first 10 days of June and commence the day after the 

accounts are published. However this specific requirement was 

temporarily suspended as a result of the Covid-19 extended deadlines. 

The 2019-20 audit inspection period covered 10th August 2020 to 21st 

September 2020. The Council did not receive any requests for 

information under these regulations during this period. 

• Audited accounts, including the Annual Governance Statement, 

together with an audit opinion and report are presented to Audit & 

Governance Committee.  The audited accounts need to be approved 

by A&G Committee.  

P
age 88



Role of Members 

• Resolution 

• Demonstrate: 

  ownership of accounting statements 

 confidence in the Executive Director of Corporate Resources and  

Director of Finance 

 

•  Approval when: 

 broad understanding of the content, 

 consistent with other financial information received, 

 happy with answers to specific questions.  

P
age 89



External Audit Process 

• Provided with accounts and working papers beginning of 
August 2020. (Ahead of the statutory deadline)  

• Year end audit between August 2020– October 2020 

• Highlight material issues  

 Impact – figures may change 

• Highlight non material issues  

 Impact 

  may or may not amend 

  changes to internal processes 

 Audit Certificate and Annual Governance Report 

P
age 90



Format of the Accounts 

• Foreword & Narrative Report 

• Statement of Responsibilities  

• Annual Governance Statement  

• Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement 

• Movement in Reserves Statement  

• Balance Sheet 

• Cash Flow Statement 

• Notes to the Financial Statements including  Accounting 

Policies 

• Pension Fund Accounts 

P
age 91



Narrative Report 

• Commentary 

• Key events  

• Impact on financial statements 

• Information should not be a surprise 

• Includes text on how the outturn position reconciles the 

statement of accounts   

 

 OUTTURN                            ACCOUNTS 

P
age 92



Key Financial Statements  

• Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

• Movement in Reserves 

• Balance Sheet 

• Cashflow 

• Pension Fund Accounts 

 

P
age 93



Reconciliation 

  

Accounts £m Movement 

£m 

Reported I&E -46.306 

Reported GF Movement 3.787 

Transfer to Reserves 42.845 0.326 

General Fund Balance £m Movement 

£m 

Balance 31st March 2019 18.520 

Reported Outturn 2019-20 Following 

Approved Transfers to/From Earmarked 

Reserves 

0.326 

Balance 31st March 2020 18.846 0.326 

 

P
age 94



Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement (Handout 1)  

• Accounting Cost  

• Split into two sections:  

 Surplus or deficit on provision of services: 

• increase or decrease in the net worth  

 Gains and losses not reflected in the surplus or deficit  

• increase or decrease as a result of movements in: 

 fair value of assets, and 

 actuarial gain / loss on pension assets / liabilities 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 95



 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 

Statement  

 

 Key items in 2019/20: 

 reported loss of £18.24m on the disposal of assets, largely as 

a result of academy school transfers  

 large decrease in the re-measurement of the net defined 

pension liability  £200.983m  

revaluation gain on non current assets totalling £76.985m 

Revaluation loss on Pooled Investment Instruments £8.358m  

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 96



Movement in Reserves 

Statutory adjustments such as replacement of 

depreciation with MRP etc. 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 31st March 2019 carried forward 18,520 153,277 171,797  29,894 92,476 294,167 49,163 343,330

Movement in reserves during 2019/20

Surplus or Deficit (-) on Provision of Services -46,306 -46,306 -46,306 -46,306

-              

Other Comprehensive Expenditure and Income 277,968 277,968

Total Comprehensive Expenditure and Income -46,306 -                 -46,306 -               -                -46,306 277,968 231,662

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding 

basis under regulations (Note 1)

3,787 3,787 -9,350 2,046 -3,517 3,517 -             

Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to 

Earmarked Reserves

-42,519 -                 -42,519 -9,350 2,046 -49,823 281,485 231,662

Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 42,845 -42,845 -                -              

Increase/Decrease in 2019/20  326 -42,845 -42,519 -9,350 2,046 -49,823 281,485 231,662

Balance at 31st March 2020 18,846 110,432 129,278 20,544 94,522 244,344 330,648 574,992

Earmarked 

General 

Fund 

Reserves

Total 

General 

Fund

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied 

Reserve

Movement in Reserves 2019/20 Total 

Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

Total 

Reserves

General 

Fund 

Balance

P
age 97



Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and 

Funding Basis under Regulations 
 

 

  

 

  

£m Management 

Reporting 

Accounts 

Revenue provision against debt       7.70 Included Excluded 

Depreciation and Impairment   (47.09) Excluded Included 

Gain or loss on sale / disposal of assets   (18.24) Excluded Included 

Capital Exp. Charged against GF      43.79 Included Excluded 

Collection Fund Adjustment       9.17 Excluded Included 

IAS 19 Pension Benefits   (38.88) Excluded Included 

IAS19 Employee Accrual       0.29 Excluded  Included 

Capital Grant Movements     60.13 Excluded Included 

Revenue Expenditure funded by Capital  (12.60) Excluded Included 

Gain or loss on Revaluation of Pooled 

Investments  

   (8.36) Excluded Included 

Financial Instrument Valuations Adjustments      0.31 Excluded Included 

Total    -3.78 

P
age 98



Balance Sheet (handout 4) 

• The Balance Sheet shows the Council’s financial position as at 

the year end (31st March).   

• The difference between the value of the assets and liabilities 

represents the Council’s net worth.  

• The net worth of the Council has increased by £231.66m to 

£574.99m from £343.33m.  

• The headings on the balance sheet represent the following:-  

» Long term Assets  

» Current Assets  

» Current Liabilities  

» Long term Liabilities  

» Reserves / Financing Section  

  

 

 

 

P
age 99



Long Term Assets 

Long Term Assets 

£1,572.46m 

 

Property Plant 

and Equipment 

£1,506.34m 

Long Term 

investments 

£66.06m 

 

Long Term 

Debtors  

£0.06m 

 

P
age 100



Current Assets 

Current Assets 

£317.59m 

 

Short Term 

investments 

£113.73m 

Cash 

£146.59m 

 

Short 

Term 

Debtors 

£54.01m 

 
Inventories 

£2.23m 

 

Assets Held for 

Sale  

£1.03m 

 

P
age 101



Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

£214.72m 

 

Short 

Term 

Borrowing 

£65.01m 

 

Short Term 

Creditors 

£98.58m 

 Short Term 

Provisions 

£1.88m 

 

Provision for 

Accumulated 

Absences 

£8.06m 

 

Capital Grants 

and RIA 

£41.19m 

P
age 102



Long Term Liabilities 

Long Term 

Liabilities 

£1,100.34m 

 

Liability 

Related to 

Defined Benefit 

Scheme 

£704.97m 

 

Long Term 

Borrowing 

£325.94m 

 
Long Term 

Provisions 

£5.13m 

 

Deferred 

Liability 

£64.30m 

P
age 103



Reserves 

Reserves 

£574.99m 

 Usable reserves 

£244.34m  

Unusable 

Reserves 

£330.65m 

 

Earmarked 

Revenue 

Reserves 

Including 

School 

Balances 

£110.43m 

General Fund 

£18.85m 

 

Capital 

Related 

Reserves 

£115.06m 

P
age 104



Key Changes from 2018/19 
Long Term Assets – Increased by £242.87m, reflecting valuation 

changes, capital disposals and academy transfers and the recognition of 

the Energy from Waste facility 

Liability relating to Pensions – reduced by £157.10m – dependent on 

actuarial assumptions 

Cash and Cash Equivalents – increased by £87.10m  

Short Term Investments – reduced by £62.36m 

Short Term Debtors – reduced by £27.61m 

Short Term Borrowing  – increased by £20.72m (Largely as a result of 

the Energy from Waste Project) 

Capital Grants and Contributions Receipts in Advance - decreased by 

£8.81m  

Long term Borrowing and Deferred liabilities – increased by £132.63m 

(Largely as a result of the Energy from Waste Project) 

 

 

 

 

P
age 105



Cash Flow Statement (handout 5) 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

• Shows changes in cash flows during the year.   

• Split into 3 net cashflow activities: 

• Operating Activities 

• Investing Activities 

• Financing Activities 

• Shows the resulting movement in cash flows for both cash and 

cash equivalents.   

• Cash equivalents include short term investments that are 

readily convertible and which are subject to only 

insignificant risk of changes in value  

  

 

 

 

P
age 106



 

 
• Grant Thornton are currently undertaking the 2019/20 

Audit of the Statement of Accounts for both the Pension 

Fund and the County Council. 

• The work is on going and a full audit findings report will be 

presented to the Audit & Governance Committee for 

consideration 30th October 2020. 

 

 

External Audit  – 19/20 Accounts 

P
age 107



The Future 

• Changes to IFRS 16 Leases – Adoption of these 

accounting regulations have now been deferred from 

2020/21 to 2021/22  

• Redmond Review on Local Government Audit and 

Financial Reporting 

  

   

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 108



 

Questions?? 

 

 

P
age 109



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement Handout 1

Restated 31st March 2019 Balance at 31st March 2020

Expenditure Income Net Expenditure Income Net

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Gross Expenditure, Gross Income and Net 

Expenditure of Continuing Operations

244,054 -100,703 143,351 Adults 258,008 -100,361 157,647

35,675 -24,711 10,964 Prevention & Wellbeing 35,685 -1,667 34,018

446,080 -308,045 138,035 Children & Families 459,020 -313,627 145,393

110,669 -18,253 92,416 Economy,Environment & Infrastructure 120,630 -22,982 97,648

33,389 -6,036 27,353 Community Safety 29,707 -7,914 21,793

48,332 -8,776 39,556 Corporate Resources 43,641 -9,411 34,230

14,753 -25 14,728 Technical & Countywide 14,610 -471 14,139

932,952 -466,549 466,403 Cost Of Services 961,301 -456,433 504,868

313 -                   313 Levies Payable 321 -                         321

2,760 -                   2,760 Gain/Loss on Disposal of Non Current 

Assets (Note 39)

 18,242 -                         18,242

3,073 -                   3,073 Other Operating Expenditure 18,563 -                         18,563

16,237 -                   16,237 Interest Payable on Debt 22,227 -                         22,227

19,925 -                   19,925 Net interest on the Net Defined Benefit 

Liability (Asset)

21,055 -                         21,055

870 -                   870 Gain or Loss on Pooled Investment 

Revaluation

8,358 -                         8,358

-5,952 -5,952 Investment Interest income -6,343 -6,343

37,032 -5,952 31,080 Financing and Investment Income and 

Expenditure

51,640 -6,343 45,297

-                           -105,595 -105,595 Recognised Capital Grants and Contributions -                   -60,133 -60,133

-                           -281,200 -281,200 Council Tax -                   -299,174 -299,174

-                           -86,674 -86,674 National Non Domestic Rates -                   -88,965 -88,965

-                           -22,518 -22,518 Non Service Related Government Grants -                   -70,023 -70,023

-                           -4,500 -4,500 Fire Pensions Top Up Grant -                   -4,127 -4,127

-                           -500,487 -500,487 Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income         -                   -522,422 -522,422

973,057 -972,988 69 Surplus (-) or Deficit on Provision of 

Services

1,031,504 -985,198 46,306

10,461              -35,919 -25,458 Revaluation Gains (-)/Losses (Note 13)  14,273 -91,258 -76,985

-                           331 331 Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of Available 

for Sale Financial Assets (Note 13)

-                   -                         -                          

92,379              -                   92,379 Remeasurement of the Net Defined 

Benefit Liability (Asset)

-                   -200,983 -200,983

102,840 -35,588 67,252 Other Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure

14,273 -292,241 -277,968

1,075,897 -1,008,576 67,321 Total Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure

1,045,777 -1,277,439 -231,662

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from 

taxation. Councils raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may 

be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in 

Reserves Statement.

Page 111



4. Expenditure and Funding Analysis Handout 2

2018/19 Expenditure and Funding Analysis 2019/20

As Reported 

for Resource 

Management

Adjustments to 

Arrive at the New 

Amount 

Chargeable to the 

General Fund 

Balance

Net Expenditure 

Chargeable to 

the General 

Fund Balance

Adjustments 

between 

Funding and 

Accounting 

Basis

Net Expenditure in 

the 

Comprehensive 

Income and 

Expenditure 

Statement

As Reported 

for Resource 

Management

Adjustments 

to Arrive at 

the New 

Amount 

Chargeable to 

the General 

Fund Balance

Net 

Expenditure 

Chargeable 

to the 

General Fund 

Balance

Adjustments 

between 

Funding and 

Accounting 

Basis

Net Expenditure 

in the 

Comprehensive 

Income and 

Expenditure 

Statement

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

144,114 -8,058 136,056 7,295 143,351 Adults 146,313 -8,211 138,102 19,545 157,647

34,120 -24,771 9,349 1,615 10,964 Prevention & Wellbeing 32,654 -463 32,191 1,827 34,018

113,364 -8,549 104,815 33,220 138,035 Children & Families 126,523 -9,488 117,035 28,358 145,393

68,172 -6,199 61,973 22,468 84,441 Economy, Environment & Infrastructure 70,325 -10,969 59,356 38,292 97,648

19,908 -1,713 18,195 17,133 35,328 Community Safety 20,664 -4,162 16,502 5,291 21,793

28,775 -                          28,775 10,781 39,556 Corporate Resources 31,243 -                   31,243 2,988 34,231

-29,861 25,757 -4,104 4,104 -                           Corporate Resources Recharges -32,497 27,368 -5,129 5,129 -                        

39,489 -11,337 28,152 -13,424 14,728 Technical & Countywide 34,110 -10,280 23,830 -9,690 14,140

418,081 -34,870 383,211 83,192 466,403 Net cost of Services 429,335 -16,205 413,130 91,740 504,870

-418,081 34,870 -383,211 -83,123 -466,334 Other income and expenditure -                  16,205 -413,456 -45,108 -458,564

-                  -                          -                       69                 69                           Surplus or Deficit 429,335        -                   -326 46,632 46,306

18,520 Opening General Fund Balance 31st March 18,520

-                  Surplus/deficit on General Fund 326             

-                  Budgeted Transfer from General Fund -                  

18,520 Closing General Fund Balance 31st March 18,846

The objective of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to demonstrate to council tax payers how the funding available to the Council (i.e. government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) for 

the year has been used in providing services in comparison with those resources consumed or earned in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. The Expenditure and Funding 

Analysis also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes between the Council’s services.  Income and expenditure accounted for under generally accepted accounting 

practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

P
age 112



2019/20 Handout 3

Adjustments from the General Fund to arrive at the 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement amounts

As Reported 

for Resource 

Management

Interest 

Receivable 

Reported at 

Portfolio Level

Flood Defence 

Levies Reported 

at Portfolio 

Level

Interest 

Payable 

Reported at 

Portfolio Level

Removal of 

Central Support 

Recharges and 

Adjustment for 

Public Health 

Grant Funding

Net 

Expenditure 

Charged to the 

General Fund 

Balance

Adjustments for 

Capital Purposes  

(Note i)

Net change for 

the Pensions 

Adjustments 

(Note ii)

Other 

Differences 

(Note iii)

Adjustments 

Between 

Funding and 

Accounting 

Basis

Total 

Adjustments

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Adults 146,313 178 -                         -                       -8,389 138,102 5,684 5,487 8,374 19,545 11,334

Prevention & Wellbeing 32,654 -                       -                         -                       -463 32,191 -                            74 1,753 1,827 1,364

Children & Families 126,523 81 -                         -                       -9,569 117,035 5,751 13,007 9,600 28,358 18,870

Economy, Environment & Infrastructure 70,325 -                       -                         -6,566 -4,403 59,356 39,149 2,519 -3,376 38,292 27,323

Community Services 20,664 -                       -                         -2,158 -2,004 16,502 3,149 3,070 -928 5,291 1,129

Corporate Resources 31,243 -                       -                         -                       -                          31,243 4,669 24 -1,705 2,988 2,988

Corporate Resources Recharges -32,497 -                       -                         -                       27,368 -5,129 -                            -                         5,129 5,129 32,497

Technical & Countywide 34,110 6,084 -321 -13,503 -2,540 23,830 2,630 -2,513 -9,807 -9,690 -19,970

Net Cost of Services 429,335 6,343 -321 -22,227 -                          413,130 61,032 21,668 9,040 91,740 75,535

Other income and expenditure from the funding analysis

-429,661 -6,343 321 22,227 -                          -413,456 18,242 21,055 -84,405 -45,108 -28,903

Difference between General Fund Surplus and Deficit and 

Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement Surplus or 

Deficit
-326 -                       -                         -                       -                          -326 79,274                  42,723               -75,365 46,632              46,632               

Note i Adjustments for Capital Purposes

Note ii   Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments

Note iii  Other Differences

Revenues From External Customers 2018/19 2019/20

£000 £000

Adults -29,130 -32,043

Children & Families -8,655 -9,275

Economy, Environment & Infrastructure -15,485 -20,680

Prevention & Wellbeing -2 -79

Corporate Services -7,964 -8,681

Technical & Countywide -15 -22

Total Revenue from External Customers -61,251 -70,780

For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made by the authority as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs and past service costs.

��For Financing and investment income and expenditure –- the net interest on the defined benefit liability is charged to the CIES.

Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under statute:

For financing and investment income and expenditure the other differences column recognises adjustments to the general fund for the timing differences for premiums and discounts. The charge under taxation and non-specific grant 

income and expenditure represents the difference between what is chargeable under statutory regulations for council tax and non domestic rates that was projected to be received at the start of the year and the income recognised under 

generally accepted accounting practices in the Code. This is a timing difference as any difference will be brought forward in future surpluses or deficits on the collection fund.

Adjustments for capital purposes – this column adds in depreciation, impairment and revaluation gains and losses in the services line, and for:

Other operating expenditure – adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on the disposal of assets and the amounts written off for those assets.„„

Financing and investment income and expenditure – the statutory charges for capital financing i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions are deducted from other income and expenditure as these are not 

chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices.

��Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure – capital grants are adjusted for income not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in the year to those 

receivable without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The taxation and non specific grant income and expenditure line is credited with capital grants receivable in the year without conditions or for which 

conditions were satisfied in the year.

Benefits pension related expenditure and income:

P
age 113



Balance Sheet Handout 4

As at Notes As at Movement

31st March 31st March

2019 2020

£'000 £'000 £'000

1,241,032 Property Plant and Equipment 3 1,506,336 265,304

151 Intangible Assets -                                   -151

88,306 Long Term Investments 5 66,059 -22,247

100 Long Term Debtors 5 63 -37

1,329,589 Long Term Assets 1,572,458 242,869

176,082 Short Term Investments 5 113,727 -62,355

1,397 Assets Held for Sale 10 1,029 -368

2,165 Inventories 6 2,230 65

81,620 Short Term Debtors 8 54,010 -27,610

59,496 Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 & 17 146,593 87,097

320,760 Current Assets 317,589 -3,171

-44,294 Short Term Borrowing 5 -65,017 -20,723

-96,281 Short Term Creditors & Revenue Receipts in Advance 12 -98,557 -2,276

-1,882 Short Term Provisions 11 -1,887 -5

-32,389 Capital Grants and Contributions Receipts in Advance 24 -41,190 -8,801

-8,353 Provision for Accumulated Absences 11 -8,065 288

-183,199 Current Liabilities -214,716 -31,517

-2,310 Deferred Liability 37 -64,300 -61,990

-4,141 Long Term Provisions 11 -5,127 -986

-255,295 Long Term Borrowing 5 -325,937 -70,642

-862,074 Liability Related to Defined Benefit Pension Scheme 32 -704,975 157,099

-1,123,820 Long Term Liabilities -1,100,339 23,481

343,330 Net Assets 574,992 231,662

294,167 Usable Reserves 2 244,344 -49,823
49,163 Unusable Reserves 13,32,38 330,648 281,485

343,330 Total Reserves 574,992 231,662

The Balance Sheet shows the value, as at the Balance Sheet date, of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Council. 

The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are 

reported in two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Council may 

use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their 

use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt). The 

second category of reserves are those that the Council is not able to use to provide services. This category of reserves 

includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would 

only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown within 

the Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’.

Page 114



Cash Flow Statement Handout 5

2018/19 2019/20

£'000 £'000

69 Net Surplus (-) or Deficit on the Provision of Services 46,306

-119,511 Adjustments to Net Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services for Non-

Cash Movements (note 14)

-149,516

113,739 Adjustments for items included in the Net Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of 

Services that are Investing and Financing Activities (note 14)

63,039

-5,703 Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities -40,171

46,271 Investing Activities (Note 15) -36,013

8,434 Financing Activities (Note 16) -10,913

49,002 Net Increase or Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents -87,097

-108,498 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period -59,496

-59,496 Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the reporting period (Note 9) -146,593

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the 

Council during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Council 

generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as 

operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising 

from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of 

the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant income or from the recipients 

of services provided by the Council. Investing activities represent the extent to 

which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to 

contribute to the Council’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing 

activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital 

(i.e. borrowing) to the Council .

Page 115



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 & Local Code of Corporate Governance 2019/20
	Audit and Governance Committee header v0.1
	Annual Governance Statement 19-20 FINAL
	GCC Code of Corporate Governance 19-20 FINAL
	Gloucestershire County Council 2019-2020 Risk Maturity Level Assessments - Directate Level
	Service Area Assurance Statements - Summary (no names) FINAL

	2 Annual Statement Of Accounts
	handout spreadsheets


